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Gross Profit
Margin

47%
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Operating
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Financial Highlights

Profit

HNE Rs. T25 Million
01T Rs. 26 Million

EPS HUDEES |

25 37

FI.“‘!

Tntal Assets

Break-up
Value

Per Share increased by

9.8%
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Notice of
Annual General Meeting

NOTICE |5 hereby given thal J6eh Annual General Mesting of Highnoon Laboratores Limited will be held on Monday, 28 April
2078 ak 17:00 am. a7 Regestared Offica. 17.5 Kiomater Multan Raad. Lahora io transact the follwing Dusiness:

1. Tooonfirm mimnses of the Extraordinary General Meeting haid on 371 August 2018,

2. Torecebss, consider and adopt the annual asdited financial statemants of the Company and consolidated finencial stataments with
i1% subsidiany for the vesr endesd 31 Decomber 2078 togethar with Divectors' and Auditors’ Reports tharson

3. Toconsider and approve payment of Cash Dividend a1 the rale of one hundred thirty percant (130%) and Bonus Shares at the rale
of fen percant (10%) to the shareholders as recommendad by the Board of Diraciors.

4 To appoint Audiors and T ihéir remuneraton for the yvéar ending 31 Decembar 2019

5. Todescuss amy oibar business with the permission of the Chair

By order of the Board

Lahore Khadim Hussain Mirza
4 April 2019 Company Secretany

8 Highnoon Laboratones Limited

o
@

Notes:

1

&

1

Share transfer books of the Company will remain clpsed from 23 April 2019 to 29 Aprél 2078 (both days ingliushes ) for the purposs
of detenmining the entitlement o payoul

A msmbar enlithed to attend and wabe af this mesting may appoint another membar a5 prosy bo attend and vole instead of him
The instrument of proxy must be recaived at the Ragistared Office of the Company, 17.5 K.M. Multan Road, Lahore nof less than
48 hours befora the time of holding the mesting. Members are advised 1o immediately intimate our Shares Registrar M's Coaplink
{Pvi.} Lim&ed any change in their address

All accoun holders registersd thiowdh Gantral Depositery Systam shall authenticals thedr idantity by showing osiginal CHIC al the
tirme of attending tha meeting. In ca5e of corporale entity, a certified copy of resolution of the Board of Directors © valid Powear of
Aftornay having the name and specimen signaturs of the nominee should be prodwoed at the time of the meeting

Im compliance with regulatory requeremsant dividend will not be pald to shaseholders whose CNIC Nos, are nof avallable with the
Compary. Shaneholders who have nol yef provided copy of thair CNIG are requestad 1o provids (he same 1o our Shane Hegisirar
WU's Corplink ( Pyt ) Limited at the earfiest

To enable the company to make tax dadection on the amount of cash dividend @15% instaad of & 20%, all shareholders who
arg filer of tax rebum ane advised to make sure that thedr names amm entersd in the Active Tax Payars List (ATL) provided on the
website of FER. Corporale shareholders having COC account are required to have thesr NTN updated with their respectres partici-
panis, whereas corporate physical shargholders should send a copy of thelr NTN cenificate 10 our Share Registrar W's Cooplink
{Pvi.} Lig

Sharshoiders wihd wish to recobsd Audited Financial Statements and Natices in future throwgh @-mail are horedy advisad 1o give
thair consend by sending filled and signed Standard Regiest Form available on our website Le. yowi highnpon-abs com 1o
Registered Office of the Company or our Share Registrar B's Corplink (Pvt.) Ltd. Pleass note that giving email address 10 recebwe

Audited Accounts (s optional, in case, you don 't want io give the emad address the same wil be sent to you by post

In compliance with S R0, T145{1) 2017 of SECP and Seclion 242 of the Companies Act 2017, It is mandalory o maka payment
of amy cash dividend Ihrough slecironic mode by direclly crediting the dividend amount in shareholders designated bank
account. Nofices seeking bank account detalis wers sent to shareholdars earlier. The shareholders who have nat yel provided
detaits of thair bank accouni are once agan requesied (o provide the detalis giving Name of designated Bank, Branch Name and
Addiress, Title of Account and IBAN No., along-with valid copy of CMIC, COC sharsholders are requested to have their bank
accoun detalls updaled with their respective paricipant and physical sharehobders send the deiadls to the Compamy of ol Shares
Regisirar, NS Corplink (Pyvi ) Lid. Phease mantion Gompany name and Folio No., whilte sending the detadls of Bank Accoun

It the Company recedves consant fioem membars holding In aggragate 10% of more sharehalding residing at a geographical

location, to panticipats in the mesting throwgh video conféfence al laas T days prior ko date of meeting. the compary will airangs

video conference facility in the city subjact to avallahifity of such faciity in the city. The Company will intimate members regarding

vemie of video conlerence {acility at least 5 days befors the daie of general mesting

e ool ] biing a mamber of Highnoon Laborsores Limited, hobder of
Ordinary Share(s) as per Registered Folio Mo harely opt for video confenance facility af

SeEnature o1 Membssr

The sharpholders, who by any reason could nof claim their oulstanding Evidend or bonus shares/physical share cerificates, if
any ara advised to contact our Shares Registrar KU's Corplink (Privata) Limited bo collect/enguire about their unclaimed dhvidend
{ pending share cerificatas, i any. The Company in complance with section 244 of the Companias Act, 2017 after having
completed the stipulated procedure, shall deposit/delpsar all swch uncaimsd amount of dividend and shares certificales outstand-
ing for period of 3 years or more from the due date in the credit of Federal Government in case of dividend and shall deliver
unclimed sharms carfificates 1o SECP

Anmil Audited Fnancial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 along-with Auditors” and Direclors Repodt of tha
Compary are placed on websiie wWWw. highnoon-labs.com

Highnoon Laboratones Limited 7
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Our
\/ision

i

We at Highnoon Laboratories Limited understand the
duties of being responsibie corporate citizen and stand true
to our conviction and promise to work for the betterment
and prosperity of our people.

Highnoon for a Healthier Nation™

Our
Mission

We strive to maintain excellence in our business practices
with the objective to benefit the medical community,
consumers, stakeholders and employees; and to improve
quality of life by providing quality products.

h* 10 Highnoon Laboratores Limited
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Corporate Objectives

Excel in meeting
customer needs.

Maintain leadership in
national pharmaceutical
industry.

Enhance export business.

Gain confidence of Doctors,
Pharmacists and Consumers
who use our products.

Seek employee involvement,
continuous improvement and

enhanced performance goals.
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Statement of
Ethics & Core Value

The achigvement and continuation of an ethical work emironmeant is a shared responsibility among employees, seniors, officals
and directors of the company, which will be treated as confidentsal

| g [ P
LU FOMESLy

Personal inlerachion among employess should be charactenzed by truthiulngss, openness [0 new nbeas and consulerabion fos
the rights of others, Each member of the team should respact the right of others to freedom of thought, opinion, speech and
associabion

Fersonal Conduct

Al Highnoon each employes is responsible for avaiding real or apparent condlicts of interest, ensuring that authority is exercised
within a framework of accountability and ensuring that information is managed in accordance with relevant statutes. Employess
must ensure that the organization’s inferests are foremaost in all business decisions and shall remove themselves from decision

making rofes which involve the employee in any personal capacity or which smvolve friends or family members

-
L F Fi
Etal L]

Research carmied out by our organization shall be characienized by the highest standards of integrity and athical behawior. Every
effort shall be made to ensure thal all research data or results of projects or programs sponsored by or under the administrative
supervision of organization are represented properly and accurately
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Directors’ Report
to the Shareholders

The directors of your Company are pleased to present the audited financeal statements for the year ended 31 December, 2018

Financiad highlights are given hereunder:

Fmancial Highlights of the Company

018 2017

(Rupees in thousands)

Profit before tax 1,056,267 912,299
Taxation (330,375)  (285,835)
Profit after tax 725891 626,464

Frofit available for appropration 2099966 1,662,525
Approgrations S
Firal cash divdend for the

FY 2018 & Rs. 13 T share 13”3%] :?554231
(FY 201 72@ Rs. 10 per share)

Earnings per shars

Based on the audited accounts for the year ended 31
December 2018 the eamings per share (EPS) of the
Gompany worked to Rs. 2537 (2017 As_21_80 Restated).

Dividend Announcement

The Board of Directors of the Company have racommend-
ed a final cash dividend of one hundred thirty percent
(130%) (2017.100%) ie. Rs. 13/~ per share (2017: Rs
10.00 per share) and bonus shares at the rate of ten
percent (10%) i.e., Ten (10) shares for every 100 shares
(2017: 12%) for the financial year ended 31 Decemnber
2018, for consideration and approval by the shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting

Pattern of shareholding

The pattern of shareholding along with categories of
shareholders as at 31 December 2018 as required snder
Section 227 of the Companies Act, 2017 and listing regula-
tions, is presented on Page 40 of the Annual Report 2018

Board of Directors and their attendance at mastings

Shareholders of the Company have elected seven members
of the Board of Directors in &n Extraordinary General Meeting
heid on 31 August 2018. Members of Board of Directors of
the Company consssts of;

a Make members B
b Female members i

14

Composition of members of the Board is

Mr. Shazib Masud
Mr. Romesh Elapata

Independent Directors

Non-executive Direciors M. Tausif Ahmad Khan
M. Ghilam Hussan Khan
Mr. Taufiq Ahmed Khan
Mrs. Zainub Abbas
Executive Director Or. Adew! Abbas Haideri
During the year six meetings of the Board of Directors of the
Company were held, The atendance of members at maetings
of the board is summanzed as under;

Sr. No Mambers of No. of Meetings
the Board Attended

Mr. Tausil Ahmad Khan

Mr. Anees Ahmad Khan®

Mr. Ghutam Hussain Khan

Mr. Taufig Ahmed Khan

Mr. Shazib hazid

Mr. Romesh Elapata

Mrs. Zainub Abbas

Dr. Adeel Abbas Haider

5 e P
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“Mr. Aneas Ahmad Khan, Divactor of the Company expirad on
14 Jamzary 2018

The Board in January 2019 appointed Miss Mael Majam as
alternate direcior to represent Mr. Romesh Elapata durmg his
absence from Pakistan,

Trading of sharas by Directors, CeQ, Cr0

and Company Secretary elc

Directors, Chéef Executive Officer, Chief Financial Odfficer,
Company Secretary, thesr spouses and minor children have

not sold or purchased shares of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2018 except following

Sr. No. Name Dedetion/Sale Remarks
Mo of Shares
1 Mr. Ghulam Hussain Khan 40100 &0id i the
inon-executive director) market

In compéiance with reguirements of Regulafions PSX and
SECP wera informed of the details of transactions, the
members of the Board were also apprised with the details of
these transactions in & meebing held immediatedy after the
Iransactions.

Highnoon Laboralones Limited

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The board has established an Awdit Committee in accondance
with the requirements of Listed Companies {Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017. The Audit Commites
consists of three non-executive directors of the Board. Chair-
man of the Committea is an independent diractor; rest of the
members are non-exacutive directors of the Comparry

1. Mr. Sharib Masud Chairman
2 Mr. 6. H. Khan Member
3. Mrz. fainub Abbas Member

Audit committee mestings were held prior to approval of
imderim fnancial resalts of the Company by board of directors
and bedore and after completion of external audit of the
Company. During the year five meetings of the Audit Commit-
tee were hedd, attendance by each member in the meetings is
summarnzed as under,

S Mame of the No. of Mestings
No. Members Attended

| Mr. Shanb Masud b

2. Mr. Ghulam Hussasn Khan

a. Mr=. Zainub Abbas 1

HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

In comphiance with requerement of Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regukations, 2017, Human Resource

2018

and Remuneration (HR & R) Committee consists of three
members, majority of which are non-axecutive directors, The
commitiee is responsible for recommending to the Board
human resource management policies, selaction, evaluation,
compensation Imﬂumn% retirement benelils) and succession
planning of the Ce0, CHD, Company Secretary and head of
Intennal Auwdit and consideration & approval on recommenda-
tion of GEQ on such matters for key management positions
who repart directly o the CEO. Undertaking a formal process
of evaluation of performance of the Board as a whole and its
commitiees directly or by engaging external independent
consultant. Following are the members of HR & R Commitiee

1 Mr. Sharib Masud Chairman
{Independent Director)

2 Or, Adesl Abbas Haider Member
(CECKExecutive director)

3 Mrs. fainub Abbas Mermbigr
{Non-exacutive director)

The mestings of the Committea held twice in the year under
reviaw, attendance in the mesbings is given as under.

af Mame of the No. of Mestings
No. Members Attended

1. Mr. Shazib Masud Z

2 Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri 2z

3. Mrs. fainub Abbas
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Directors’ Report
to the Shareholders

PRINCIPAL HISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Highnoon has a vigorous risk management framework in
place, where risks to the business are identified and counder
measures arg proposed in a timely manner. Following are
major risk 1o the business along with their remedial action:
Law in arder/ nisk of fire

An adequate insurance coverage 5 in place for all the fied and
current assets o that in case ol adverse event impact can be
minimized.

Maintenance Risk

This rsk refates to possibility of production loss due to capaci-
ty or breakdown factor. In order to mitigate maintenance resk,
effective technical monitoring programs with regards o
preventive maintenancs ang in place.

Product Quality Risk

In order to mitigate quality risk, an efficient quality manage-
ment system is in place so that each and every batch is subject
to stringent quality process and only compliant product is
releasad in the market.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Finished pharma products prices are fived by DRAP, while
Mmmghhlmunmhginmhd
passed on to end consumer. In order to minimize impact of
this risk 2 number of measures like alternabive sourcing,
inventory buildup s followed by managemeant.

Information System Risk

Business continuity and disaster rmmmyphmmﬂh] e in
place to ensure that the gﬁmdummm
nwmﬂummﬁuw DRPs cover al business

ngm special focus on information tech and the
mmmmmummm
rmbﬂuﬂmg_fﬂFhﬂwﬂmHHﬁmmﬂ
members are 1o ensure rapid response in the event o
a business disruption.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

During the year, the contribution to the National Exchequer

has further increased and the Company paid/‘accrued over Rs.

ﬁﬂﬂmllimm]‘l? Rs. 652 million) to the government and its
vanipus agencies on account of different levies,

including custom duty, sales tax, ., WWF, CRF and

income fae

16

STATEMENT OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS PRACTICES

The Board has prepared and disseminated the Statement of
Ethics and Business Practices. The statement was placed on
website of the Gnmpm' and dmmmmlhwm
employee for awarensss
MMMWMHMMMMM

persons associated or dealing with the Compary.

ENVIROMENT PROTECTION

Strict preventive maintenance schedube is in place to ensure
exhaust emission values meet the legal requirements. A
proper wasle management sysiem is in place and we manage
the hazardous and nonhazardous waste as per legal require-
ment through approved vendors.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The external auditors of the Company EY Ford Rhodes,
Chartered Accountants shall refire on the conclusion of Annual
B oo 1o s bt o mvcoe s matirg
5, SEMVICes 45
mmmwmwmmm The Auwedit Commit-
tee has recommended the appointment of EY Ford Rhodes,
Chartered Accountanis as Auditors of the Company for the
year ended 31 Decernber 2019 and the Board agrees 1o the
recommendation of the Audit Commuttee.

The Auditors have also given their consent for the next year
and have conveyed that they have been given satisfactory
mm:muw@mmnmﬂmmd
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that the tirm and all its
partners ane fully compdiant with the code of ethics issued by
International Federation of Accountants {IFAC). Further, they
are also not rendering any related services to the Company.
The Auditors have also confirmed that neither the firm nor any
of thesr rs, thew spouses or minor children at any time
during the year held or traded in the shares of the Company.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
Curexa Heaith (The Subsidiary) Performance Review

This was first full operational year for the Subsidiary Company
Curexa Health {Pvt) Ltd. Curexa is engaged in the manutactur-
ing of Cephalosporing, these are bacterial beta-lactam anti-
héotics. As of cose of December 2018, the total market size of
Cephalosporins = estmated to be Rs 33 billion, Corexa’s
flagship product Ceftro (Ceftnaxone) was ranked ong of the
lop 10 products in new product category.

The net sale of Curieea for the ended 31 December 2018
closed at Rs. 246 million last year sales of Rs 20.7
miflion. Gross profit of the subsidiary was Rs 60.4 milion with
a GP ratio of 24.3%. This translated n to an eaming per share

Highnoon Laboratones Limited

(EPS) of Rs 1.19 against loss per share (LPS) of Rs 0.94 for
2017.

In the first year of operations, Curexa was manutacturing only

wmmmwmmnmm
Curexa is actively working on manufacturing of

mmmmmmwmmm

launch by the close of second quarter of current financial year.

A separate Dwectors’ Report has been attached with consoli-
dated financial stalements of the Company with its whally
owned subsidiary.

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

The Company has an approved Dwectors Remuneration policy
um:mlm remuneration of exacutive, non-executive and

directors of the Company. The significant
Iutuﬁuiﬂ'lpnlmrmc

- mdlm“mmmiﬁsﬂpﬁ
provisson contained in Articles of Association of the

mwmmﬁummn

The Board of Directors ("BOD7) on recommendation of

Human Resource & Remuneration (HR & R} Committes

ghall, from time to time, determing and approve the remu-

Wﬂmmﬁm BOD for attending Board
ngs.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2017 the
mﬂf:ﬂ related party transactions occurred during the
year under review were placed before the Board of Direclors
periodically for consideration and approval on recommenda-
tion of the Audit Commitiee. The pricing method for related
party transaction was approved by the board. Al the transac-
tions were at arms length and the Audit Committee and the
Board of Directors of the Company have approved all related
party transactions in their respective meetings in compliance
with approved pricing method. The detadls of transactions of
refated party are given at note - 38 & 41 of the financial
slatements.

ADEQUATE INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board of Directors with assistance of management team
has established an adequate intemal control system in the
Company. The Systern of internal confrols is sound in desgn
mmmmmmmmmMmm
ization and being monitored for its consistent oparations

sysiem establishes structures, r&pnrﬁnghm:nddﬂmm
of authority. Levels of authorites are well defined, policies,

procedures & practices are Mmuﬂﬂﬂlmln
true spirit to achieve business and strategsc objactives of the

Company. The board and its sub-committee{s) are independ-
ent of management and take the responsshity for providing

Highnoon Laboratones Limited
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oversight for the development and operation of controls. in
compliance with Code of Corparate Governance the manage-
ment established an effective internal audit function which
report to Audit Committee. The audit function provide assur-
ance to the audit committee on the adequacy and effectiveness
of internal controls as well as review of compliance with the

Company's policies, procedures and work practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors confirm compliance with the Corporate and
Financial Reporting framework of the Code of Corporate
Governanca and other regulations for the following:

1. The financial stalements together with the notes thereon
have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act
2017. These Statements, prepared by the management
present fairly the Company’s state of affairs, the results of
its operations, cash flows and changes in equsty.

2. Proper Books of accounts have been maintained.

3 Wmmmmmm
applied in preparation of financiadl statements and
estimates are based on reasomable and

accounting
prugent pudgment.
4. International Financial Reporting standards, as applicable

in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of the
financial statements.

5. The System of internal controls is sound in design and
has been effectively implemented and monitored.

6. There are no significant doubts upon the Company's
ahility to continué as a going concem.

7. Accounting estimales are based on
and ﬁm no outstanding mmwm
account of Government taxes, duties, levies and charges
except for thosa which have been disclosed in note 12 and
note 15 1o the financial statements.

8. There have baen no material changes sincé 31 Decamber
2018 and the Company has not enterad into any commat-
ment, which would affect the financial position a the
raport date.

9. None of the Direclors has been convicted as a detaulter in
payment of any loans of Banks / DFls, neither they nor
their spouses are engaged in the busimess of stock
brokerage. The Board has separately appended “State-
ment of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 and auditors
have given unqualified review report thereon.

17
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10. There has been no significant departure from the Bast
Practices of Corporate Gowernance, as detailed in the
lesting requiations

11. The value of investment of the Provident Fund basad an
un-audited accounts as on 31 December 2018 was
Rs.199 984 million as comparad to Rs. 176,114 million as
per audited accounts of 31 December 2017

12. Key financial data for the last six years as an investors’
guida is annexed to the Report.

WEB PRESENCE

In compliance with the requirements of Securties and
Exchanpe Commission of Palestan [SECF) all information
refating to the Company including periodic financial
statements | annual reports eic., are avasable on the websile
Stakeholders and general public can log on to Company's
website www.highnoon-labs.com to retrieve their desired
information.

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW

The Directors endorse the contents of the Chairman’s Heview,
which form part of the Directors” Report. The Board in compli-
ance with requirement of section 227(5) of Companies Act
2017, authorized the Chief Executive Officer and a diractor to
sign the Direclors’ Report on behatt of the Board

For and on behalf of the Board
Dx. Adeel Abbas Haideri Taufig Ahmed Khan
Chief Executive Officer Director

Lahore; 28 March 2019
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Chairman’s
Review

| welcome you to the 36th Annual General Meseting of
Highnoon Laboratories Limeted, | am happy o present
comparny's annual performance review along with the audited
financial statements and the awditor's repori thereon for the
year ended 315t December 2018,

| am proud of the progress we have made as an organization
over the past several vears. Our performance reflects
shared sense of purpose and continued pursull of operational
excelience, We remain focused on executsen and enhancing
efhciency by investng heavily in our systems and people to
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consistently produce quality products. We have built a
stronger Highnoon and shall conbinue o do betier than we
have ever dong before, to outperform compebbion i key
therapeutic segments where we operate,

Net sales revenue increased to Rs.7 503 million registering a
growth of 26 percent over last year and restated sarmings per
share rose by 16 percent to Rz, 25.37. Over the last six years
we have acheeved compound annual growih rate of 17 percent
During the year under review export remained flat mainly due
1o intermitient closure of border and changs of disinbubion
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Highnoon Laboralonas Limited

sefup in Afghanistzn. The company is however, making
Inroads i newer geograpiees as more and mofe product
registrations come in place

We conbinue io perform despie the poltical unrest and
economic mstabiity. Massive depreciation of Fak Rupes
impacted our cost curves on a large scale as pharmaceuticals
is an import dependent industry. These factors forced o
gross profit margin fo drop by 1 percenl. Howewer, we
remained persistent in our goal 1o increase sirong présence in
the market and managed the operations well to minimize the
impact on gross profit

2018 was the sith consecutive year of high double-dugit
growth of our tophne. Company's four brands Combivair
(bong-acting beta-agonist), Kestine {antihistamine), Tagipmet
{oral antihyperglycemic) and Cyrocin (ciprofloxacin) featured
amang top 200 brands, The company plans fo continue its
focused pursuit to hamness the potential of the masting
products, launch néw products selectively and increase
productivity. This approach has given us focus fo grow our
brands in cardiometabolics, anti-infectives and respiratory
segments. Drstribution and sedling expentes ross by Hs. 427
milkon over the precedng yedr, the ncreass represents higher
investments towards new product launches and expansson in
gales personnel for broader customer base. These mwest-
ments yelded 26% sales growth as compared to 14% growth
of Pakistan's pharmacevtical ndusiry. Other operational
gxpenses remaimned under control with no significant increass
over last year,

HIGHNOON
RESPIRATORY

| combivair 200
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Chairman’s

Review

We redesigned marketing approach of your company in 2018
for higher market penetration and pnoritized allocation of
capital across our offering. Last year, we expanded product
porifolio with new pharmaceutical products and products from
our subsidiary and associated companses, Now, through a
seamiless parinership, we offer our customers a wede vanety of
pharmaceuticals, cephalosporin antibiotics and nutraceuicals
We have a crisper portfolio of products that mest customer's
needs of today and tomorrow. Cefiro, an antibiotic brand manu-
factured at subsidiary company Curexa Health, is ang of the
fastest growing products in the market.

We ensured that our core therapeulic segments remained
strong and vibrant. Sales revenue from amentary tract and
metabolism segments grew 10 Rs. 2,264 milkon showing an
mncrease of 20% over last year (IMS MAT 12/2018). The growth
in this segment exceaded the industry growth by 5 percent. In
this segment, our core brands namely Tres Orod Forte, Uisanac
and Skilax maintained their market position, whereas Tagipmet,
which is a ralatively a new brand rose by 51 percant over kast
year by recording a turnover of Rs. 586 milkion. The success of
Tagipmet was fortified with the launch of a sustained refease
formulation

Growth n respiratory segment remained phenomenal. In a
short span of few years, respiratory portfolio of the company s
at the leadership position and our flagship brands Combivair
and Tovair are the most prescribed brands in this therapeutic
category. Combnvair crossed Rs. /00 milson o become the
largest brand of the mhakafion market. Our respiratory business
grew by 27 percent as compared 1o segment growth of 17
percent (IMS MAT 12/2018). Kestme, an anti-histamine is
another successtul brand registering a growth of 25 percent
with topline of Rs. 500 million

Our cardiovascular portiolio grew by 21 percent (IMS MAT
12/2018) as compared to the market growth of 13 percent. This
growth is being driven by the newly launched products and
variants. Misar, an angiotensin receéptor blocker (ARB) for the
management of hyperiension grew by over 38 percent. Similar-
Iy, growth of Nebix, a cardio selective beta blocking agent also
remaingd in limelight and registered a growth of 30 percent
Triforge, a combination tablet of amlodipine, valsartan and
hydrochlorothiazide has been well received by the cardiologist
and has netted a revenua of Rs.122 million. We are confident
that Triforge will soon becoma the drug of choice prescribed by
the medical practitionars, In the meanwhile, we are working on
several new cardiology products that will augment and buld a
constant revenue base,
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Highnoon Laboralones Limited

The herbal portfolia of the company is also progressing well
Bonnisan, a herbal medicing for comman Gl disorders in infants
and children crossed sales of Rs. 139 mifkon

Qur focus throughout the year has been and contenues 10 drive
organic growth across our portfolio. As a forward-inoking
company, new product development is our heartbaal and is the
toundaton of our success. We will continue to imvest wisely and
selectively in therapeutic segments that support growth of
profitable products

Your company's dynamic busmess and product development
teams keep a keen eye on recent medecal advancements ail over
the world, We parbcipate in refevant global medicad and scaenti-
I conferences o ensure that we are up to date.

The future of your company 18 bemg bult on new and novel
therapeutic solutions. In 2018, we fied record number of 37
new product applications fo the Drug Regulatory Authomty
(DRAF). Likewizse, we have fled dossiers in varius countries
ami await approvals. We plan fo grow our infermationa
business in several regions arpund the world where the
pharmaceutical spend s projected to grow by double digits in
the next few vears, such as the G5 countries, Africa, and the Far
East

Bonnisan

Far bonny. healthy bakbies
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Chairman’s
Review

Dur continual improvement process enabled us fo oplimize
operations, supply cham and business practices thereby genes-
atng sustainabie efficsancies throughout the company. Eificken-
cies in our manufacturing opérations led 1 significant cost
improvements, We are proud of this progress as we continue 1o
improve efficiency and productivity across the organdzation
Having realired ssgnificant benefits from manufacturing capac-
ties, wee remain focusad on delivering higher operating afficien-
gies and process improvemants throughout the operations. We
have transformad workspace, to achieve manufactunng excel-
lence at all levels, with the introduction of various Overall Equip-
ment EMectiveness (OEE) mitatives. This has resulted in
production of record number of unils during the year

Highnoon is commitied io prodoce quality producis consist-
ently. During the year your company remaned focused on its
quaiity culture and its tofal quality momentm &CToss Dpera-
fions. In lingé with our quadity vision, we prepare to obtain
international compliance certifications. We are moving ahead fo
have our quality control laboratory accredited in the coming
years. This shall refterate our emphasis on quality operations

Dur people are backbone of the company. We stand af a begin-
ming point of a new joumney and our éenabled and capable team
is ready to take Highnoon to higher aititudes. We invest in
human capital to continuously nurture performance culture and
to practice our core values of frusi, fransparency, empower-
ment and accountability. Through the learing & development
programs, our business leaders gel exposed to- management
courses at the leading business schools of the world. The
company idenfifies the developmental needs of individual
employees and talor makes development plans. During the year
under review a fofal of 24,320 man hours were dedicaled on
training and development.

We continug o bring improvements in all aspects of human
resource management. We provide the best work culture and
gnsure that the working emaronment 1s happy, pleasant and
safe. Safety is important o us, we take multiple mitiabves
across ditferent bevels to ensure that our people work in a risk
free environment. We encourage safely and organime
campaigns and workshops on fopics such as road safety, work
place safely efc. The company also encourages heathy Iife
shles and provides opportunities fo play and be healthy, happy
and mofivabed
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Chairman’s
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The company has abways been conscious of ‘giving back to
society.” We reguiarly support variely of healih-related causes
including relief and rehabilitation, promotion of education,
provision of free medicines, child and women development
initratrves to name a few. The helpmg philesophy of the compa-
ny guides ws, and we give back to the sociely in our humbie
way.

We feel we can assist patenis Iwing with serious health
challenges. Thalassemia s one such disease affechng
thousands of Paksstani children every year. We have supporied
these children for the last many yvears and confinue fo provide
free of cost iron chelating agent to patients suffenng from blood
disorders. Last year, we ook a step forward and broadened the
scope of our coninbution and established a Thalassemia Centre
in Lahore in collaboration with Pakistan Bed Crescent Sociely.
The company is not only proveding this center with free of cost
fron chelating medicing, bid i ks also providing financial assis-
tance towards operaton of the Thalasseméa Centre

improving educabional opportunities and hence employability
has been another initiatve that integrates and aligns with our
business operations. Education is another area where the
company regularly confributes. Dur objective is to financially
assist needy students. so they pursie their education. The
company provides financial assistance 1o the needy students of
Punjab University College of Pharmacy. Similarly, a program
has been infiated o support desenving children of company
employees fowards professéonal education at undergraduate/
post graduate level

The company also supports women empowerment projecis fo
boost the confidence, improve the skill s2t and fo help women
to fully participate in society. We launched a "Women's Forum’
in which female employees of the company participate fo
discuss and resolve vanious facets of evenyday work life.

O JTK ﬂ'

N Thalassemia Center

-

Highnoon Laboralonas Limifted

Highnoon Laboratories Limited complies with all the reguire-
ments st out in the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regolafions, 2007
with respect 1o the composition, procedures and mestings of
the Board of Directors and its commitiees. As required under
the Code of Corporale Governance, an annual evaluation of the
Board of Directors is camied out. The purpose of this evaluation
5 to ensure that the Board's overall performance and effective-
ness is measured and benchmarked against expectations in the
context of objectives set for the Company. Improvement areas
it any, identified during the process of perlormance evaluation
ase duly considered by the board and cormective acthon plans are
framed and implemenied accordingly.

A comprehensive critenon has been developed and the perfor-
mance of the board iz evaluated against this critegion. The
board has completed annual evaluation for the year ended 31
December 2018, Based on the perdormance evaluation, the
overall performance of the board was satisfactory.

PASSION | ACCOMPLISH | CHALLENGE | EFFICIENCY

Highnoon Laboratories Limited

o
@

We continue to face numerous challenges. Macroeconomic
conditions, sluggish economy, a weaker currency. volatile raw
material prices and supplies, energy prices. and reguiatory
challenges in our business are batiles that we will fight.

The decision of the Government to setile hardship cases and
allow 15 percent price increase is helping the indusiry to partly
offset the negative impact of Rupee devaluation. Similarty
initiatrve taken by the Government fo provide Sehat Insaf cards
hall be beneficial for the patent and the pharmaceutical mdus-

try

Dur focus shall remain on driving organic: growth across our
porttodio and accelerating growth through new products, lins
extensions and improved product mix. | believe that with our
strong portfolio of exsting brands, new producls ppeline
ongoing invesiments i infrastructure and investments in our
people are the ingredients that will enable us to successhully
dedrver strong business results as we go forward.

| take this opporiunity to thank the members of the medical
profession, trade, institubions, government & semi-government
hospitals, cusiomers and shareholders for their contnued trust
and support. On behalf of the management, | would also liks o
thank all the employees of the company for their deep commat-
ment fowards achieving the company's objectwes. | am
confident that with this commitment and support, Highnoon
will continie fo surge forward on the path to greater growth.

| hpoke fonward 1o another siccessiul year.

For & on behall of the Board

Tausd Ahmad Khan
Chairman

Date: 29 March 2019
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Six Years at a Glance

2018 m7 2016 2015 2014 2013
{Rupess in ‘0007

Summary of Financial Position
“Ghare Gaphial 206,074 255,423 226,000 206 622 181,805 181,805
Reserves 20387 1,776,525 1,376,456 1,021 581 731,355 533.560
Operating Fixed Assets 276,068 934,876 T28.635 763, 884 751,243 Tar 54
Mo Current Asgets 243337 233843 40407 134,845 74977 96,481
Currend Asssis 2 551 664 2,183,453 1,855,578 1,391 757 1,180,377 TR 344
Current Liabilities 437 B2G 522 081 BE2211 523 048 488,172 301 878
Met Working Capétal 21137856 1670472 1193367 BGE.708 620,501 436 456
Non-cuerent Liabiities 88,596 49,950 44003 31 428 4333 71.ma
Deferred Liahilities 374,124 373230 312,920 203,727 269,170 267,233
Summary of Prafit or Loss
Lates - Nat 7.50210 5471.2M 5,070,755 4,403 995 3606 092 3,007 925
Gross Proft 3500431 2845 80 2. 7B 020 2002 116 1,655,234 1,730,661
Earning Badore Interast, Tax, Depreciation
andl Amadritzation [EBITDA} 1,067,111 1012530 #03.293 frad4m 573504 347,760
Operating Prodit 1,064,654 917,258 795946 B75 458 426,795 352 726
Profit Before Tax 1,056,267 2,208 789,875 566, 105 £14.404 233302
et Profit After Tax Ta5En 626 464 534876 444 61 2N.808 155535
Symmary of Cash Flows
“Net Cxsh Flaw from Operating Activities 433,184 267,060 67,570 335,766 470504 370,435
Nt Cash Flow from Investing Actnities 23244 (120081)  (142274)  (163911) {20.883) {11,354)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Acithvites (289.019)  (196.113)  (167402)  (154547)  (172920)  (316.010)
Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents 167 400 {68.134) 327 594 17 308 265,79 43.0M
Gash and Gash Equivalents al Year End T79.975 612 566 560,700 352,795 335324 49533
Firancial Performanca/Profaabety Analyss
Sates Growth % 2565 17.76 15.14 1915 268 .98
Grosa Praf Margin % 46.65 47 66 46,90 475 44,78 409
EBITDA to Sales Marpin % 1556 16,96 17 62 1756 1417 11.56
Operating Profit Margin % 1419 15.36 1664 15.34 155 8.40
Profit Before Tax Margin % 14.08 15.28 1558 15.14 nn 7.72
Profit After Tax Margin % 067 10.49 10.55 10.08 7.38 517
Return on Equity % 2904 3083 3334 36.23 2978 71,74
Return on Capital Employed % 28.04 3008 32 45 35.32 28.43 19.78
Operating Partormance/Liquidity Anasyss
inveriory Turnaver Days 113 115 126 118 W07 120
Debitors Tumowver Daiys 13 10 5 B 7 B
Creditors Turnaver Days a7 51 63 66 62 49
Cash Operating Cycle Days 88 T 68 58 52 70
Aasats Turnaver Ratio Times 1.99 1.78 1.79 1.92 180 1.90
Fixed Assats Tumaover Times 6.5 BN 5.8 440 449 .57
Fieturn on Assets % 3083 2713 T8 2N a3 14 68
Current Aatio Times 583 419 2.80 166 295 2,45
Qisck Ratio Times 274 206 1.30 1.02 ney 0.&0
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Six Years at a Glance
2ma il ) 2016 25 2014 ama3
{Rupees n '000°)

‘Distribution Anatysss
Py oul-Proposed
= Cash Dividend per sharg Fz., 13.00 10.00 B850 7.50 .50 4.50
- Bonus % 10.00 12.00 12.00 1200 12.00 -
Payout Ratio (atter tax) w 5500 45 66 41.35 a9.80 51.48 5260
Diewidend Yield % 4.00 262 1.52 151 340 3.80
Eamnings Per Share {after tax) Rs./share 2537 24,53 23.46 1047 14.06 B.SE
Price Earning Ratio Times 13.70 17.40 3724 2066 474 13.85
Capital Structra/Market Value Analysis
Long Term Debt : Equity Ratia 03e7 02:98 0298 0as7 D624 08:92
Financial leverage Tienss 1.4 1,65 177 187 213 291
Sharehoidars’ Nal Woeth &5 % of

Total Azgats ™ 7436 0.4 56.62 5361 4695 45N
Finaancial Crangas Covarage Temes 12299 11803 12790 TaTs 3369 1162
Mumber of Shares in 000" 20,807 25,542 22,806 20,362 18,181 18,181
Break-up Vaiue of Share
- Excluding Surplus on revaluation Rs. 87.39 1955 70.36 60,19 50.23 39.35
- Including Surplus on revaluation Rs. 100.34 04,59 70.56 7083 6239 5183
Market Value of Share
- Year End A= 765 4378 G30.00 57740 20046 11853
- Highest Rs. 495 B1 750,00 B58.91 B19.85 305.00 185.00
- Lowest Rs. 240,00 375.00 398 04 20,00 117.50 4500
Market Capitalization Rs. D00 9945363 10900943 14572804 11757018 4008077 2154937

* Based on propased finad dividend

Profitability Shareholders’ Equity, Assets and Return
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Graphical Presentation
EPS, Dividend and Payout % Mariket Value of Payout Proposed
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Statement of Value Addition
and its Distribution

o w0 |

Value Added
Net Sales 7533818 5,985,125
Material & Services 4 896 802 3,798 932
(Other Income 33044 29.278
Distribution
Employees
A [
14355 AL
Government
Income Tax 3037 285, 834
Sabes Tax 3,718 13,896
Central Resaarch Fund 11,345 10,587
Workers Weltare Fund 20,954 18,244
393,392 328,561
Society
Donation 21ms 4 B4
Provider of Fnances
;n Shareholder as I:?i'l dividend :EEE | 19:’1'.313
o Banks as financial charges ﬁ
Retained in Business
Retained Pfuﬁi:d | lﬁ'iﬁ ﬂ'lm%ﬂ
__ZBT0063 _ 225 ATT
Yoar 2018 Year 2017
® Emgployess’ as Remunaration s
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Horizontal Analysis
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Vertical Analysis

STATEMENT OF il o Lf | H6 ‘s o) Hma
FINANCIAL POSITON REn000 % | Aaim000 % (PaiD0 % |PeinD0 %[/ Arin00 %) |(Reed0 %
Shate Captal and Fieserer
Shate cageal Wegr 85 MEAN TH Sk F M3 B8 WAE 83 tHAE 1S
Rerpalugs 14580 2aNeE BRE 1\ TTRLRS 514 13ME4SE 405 10MAEY ME 0 TN e SnSe A7
Surpiun on 1evsulion of lrmed susets 0408 110 3MAE 14 MM 62 ‘m.m 85 D0 M4 2B W3
Kon Coren) Lubiite
Liong THm boan - BaCened " - - - . . - . . - e 24
Lishitss apainet sesshy shject 1o francs lsass 4486 13 uaz 04 1AM 05 M6 05 WIWM 16 MM 18
Long term advances &g 13 BHT i1 e 08 HH‘F L] 13067 a7 BTH 0F
Detad ladukien M 1 nm M naasxd e 128 230N 38 MTIM 165
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Curmmnt Labimes
Trade and ofer payatiss MIAAT Q8 4MGESD 110 MLENE ME ME5M TS AMET N0 1950 Y64
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e recETvalies i @1 4518 o 331 Q1 8 L5 A 1M o
Loan e sty 20000 a5 20000 06 - - - - - . . -
Tas tefurid de rom goesinment ThE @2 E@1 2 413 04 TR Al s o8 taE2 12
Incomie Thn-nel 3 i o - - i > - - 1840 @
SneT bt (P ITann - 5 100000 10 = : : i
LCash and bask halances. THAgM T lﬂ..'ﬂ 'lla'.‘ -J.?I:I MO MITHE 154 0 MSEIM T2 MED A
o !ﬂim !’I’ . . '- 13 ¥ » ) - il .. 3 - L . -.

377,068 1000 ;,:_u;m:m m 5 2790486 0D 1 MMM M0 158230 w8

Assets Equity and Liabilitses
o P -canreed g, 2 Dgrtii i = by o Supha oo ivihefen  Nen-Caried laibfied g Corrind badebllan

i
i

it oF
(1] - e
[ ] T
o oz
] A [ ]

Friok] o Foalk-1 L T ol

T



i REED 5 ]
o peecer 2018 Horizontal Analysis
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Pattern of Shareholding
as at December 31, 2018 | Comumoisweges  WooSwohdn  NoolSweshs e |
Deesinea, CEO and thail Spouss sosd Wmce Chiddran H . ’
r Tauss# Ahmad Khan i 2118 2TE T40%
lAr Ghislaen Husasin Kpan 1 50875 1.99%
i 1105 i 100 R, G0 Mt Shant Masod 1 3 000
i 1% " v 500,134 :::?uuqn:uﬁnm : uz:ﬁ :m
£l > ;
3 an 301 Yoo e D Adked Abbas Haiden 1 534 0.00%
i 5 1001 000 112,706 irn, Zainub Abhis 1 1262071 4 38%
5 54 5001 10000 385, B54 ) - =~
B 19 10001 15000 23,675
Aszooated ompanes, Underisungs Bieialed Partes
7 13 15001 20000 225 605 < ' "
B 3 20001 25000 67,547 MIT and ICP ¥ ___ EMEs 1.52%
8 2 250 20000 51,014 - i i i
Bamds, Devainpmant Financial ingnitions, g
e 3 003 35000 98,71 Financial Infitutions, Ssint Sinck Companses & Trasis a7 741.048 759%
11 2 35001 40000 72786 o o
12 5 40001 45000 207 538 Insursce Companies R __SXiem 1B.39%
13 .| 45001 50000 138,358 s i i o -
14 2 50001 55000 103,622 A - — — N
16 2 55001 65000 129,914 *Sharsholdars halding 5% of moes — E
16 2 63001 100 144,753
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1@ 1 80001 BO0O0 67,543 Ganetal Pubilic . )
18 2 20001 105000 204,163 o Local 7 12082 474 42 24%
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22 1 120001 145000 141,035 Gavernment Holdeg 1 311,562 1.0
bl i 145001 15000 21284 TOTAL 3408 _IREOT NS 100%
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a7 i 5001 310000 307 403 Mlr. Tauss? Ahmad Khan 21B2TH .40
78 1 WAt Taufig Abmed Khan 2EMAST 5.87%
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3 1 1040001 1150000 1,146, 552 COC - Trotiee Alaigh GHP |slamic Shock Fund 5 0.0000%
35 1 1150001 1255000 1,252,071 gﬁ i I"“’:“ﬂl ”W*FS"::‘: E: gﬁ;’:
- r“ H'm"“ "
6 1 1255001 19590000 1,982,025 COC - Trusise Meersn Iskamic Fund 503 0.0018%
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a1 | 3425001 TETS000 3.871.028
Total Moa 28 60T 393
40 Highnoon Laboratones Limited Highnoon Laboratones Limited 41




Statement of Compliance
with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Goverance) Regulations, 2017

Mame of Company: HIGHNOON LABORATORIES LIMITED
Year ended: Decamber 31, 2018

The company has compliad with the requiremants of the Reguiations in the following manner:
1. The total numbar of directors are 7 as per tha fallowing:

a Male: [
b. Femala: 1

2. The composition of board is as follows:

i) Independent Directors 2
b} Crther Non-executive Directors 4
¢} Executive Dirsctor 1

3. The directors have confirmad that none of them is sering as a director on more Than five listed companies, including this
company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicabla).

4, The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the
Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate stralegy and significant policies of the Company. A
complete racord of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they wera approved or amended has baen

raintainad.

6. Allthe powers of the board have baen duly exercised and decissons on relevant matters have baen taken by board/ sharehold-
ors a5 empowerad by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Reqgulations.

7. The meetings of the board were prasided over by the Chasrman and, in his absance, by a diractor elected by the board for
this purpose, The board has complied with the requiremants of Act and the Ragulations with respact to frequency, recording
and circulating minutes of meeting of board.

B.  The board of directors have a formal palicy and transparent procadures for remunération of directors in accordance with the
Act and these Regulations.

8. During the period under review the Board has arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:

Diractors:
1. Mr, Shazib Masud Director
2. Mr. Romesh Elapata Director
Exscutives:
1. Mr. Javed Hussain Exacutive Diractor Finance / CFQ
2. Miss Iram Naila Associate Director (Regulatory Aftairs)
3 Mr, Fazal H. Rizwan Pirzada  Head of Internal Audit

Out of reraining five directors of the Company oné dirsctor obtained Certification of Directors Training Program in 2015
thria directors quality the critersa of exemplion lasd down by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the ong
director will gat certification within the prescribed time limit. Miss Nael Najam, Alternate Diréctor is also a certified director
from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governanca,

AL R PLIST m}lﬂ

Statement of Compliance
with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Goverance) Regulations, 2017
10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration
and terms and conditions of employrent and compliad with relevant requirements of the Requiations. However, there were
no new appointments of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of internal awdit,
11. CFO and CEQ duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.
12. The board has formed commitizes comprising of members given below:

al Audit Commifies

1. Mir. Shazib Maswd Chairman | Member
2. Mr. G.H Khan Member
3. Mrs. Zainub Abbas Member

h) HR and Remuneration Commities
1. Mr. Shazib Masud Chairman | Member
2. Dr. Adeel Abbas Haident  Member
3. Mrs, Zainub Abbas Mernber

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid commitiees have been formed, documented and advised to the commities for
compliance.

14. The frequency of meatings (quartertyhalf yearty yearly) of the commitize were as per following:
a)  Audit Committee 5

b) HR and Remuneration Commities 2

15, The board has set up an effective internal audit function and the internal auditors of the Company are suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and fully conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

16. The statutory auditors of the have confirmed that they have been give rating under the quality

control mmﬂlhﬂmﬁﬂm wmmwmm!wmuwmmm
of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and that the firm and all its pariners are in
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP,

17, The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have nol been appointed to provide other services except in
accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they
have observed IFAC guidefings in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

TALUSIF AHMAD KHAN Dr. ADEEL ABBAS HAIDERI
Chairman Chief Execofive Officer

29 March, 2019
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Independent Auditor’s
Review Report
To the members of Highnoon Laboratories Limited

Review Report on the Statemeant of Compliance Contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Govern -
ance) Regulations, 2017.

We have reviewed ihe enchosed Statement of Compilance with the Listed Companses [Code of Corporate Governance) Regula
tiones, 2017 (the Ragulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Highnoon Laboratories Limited (the Company) for the year
gnded 31 December 2018 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 40 of the Ragulations

The responsibility for compliance with the Reguolations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company, Our responsibidity is io
review whether the Statemend of Complance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regula -
tiones and repodt if it does not and fo highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review 5 limited
primarily to inguiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documeants prepaned by the Company to comphy with the
Requiations.

Ag a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obiain an understanding of the accounting and internal control
systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board
of Directors’ statement on intermal control covers all risks and contrals or 1o form an opinion on the effectivenass af such intermal
controls, the Company's corporale governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations requira the Comgparmy to place before the Awdit Commities, and upon recommandation of the Audid Committes
place before the Board of Direclors for their review and approval, its relaied party transactions and also ensure comphance with
the requirerments of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017 [the Act). We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirament to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the
Audd Committes. We have not carmied oul procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of
refaied parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or ot

Basad on our réview, nothing has come to our attention whech causes us to believe that the Stalement of Compliance does not
appropriatety reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as
applcabde to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018

"i ’Flﬂ"—""‘*

Chartered Accountants
Audit Engagemant Pariner: Naseem Akbar
Lahore

0% April 2018
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Auditor's Report to the Members

To the members of Highnoon Laboratories Limited

Report onthe audit of the financial statements

Dpinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Highnoon Laboratories Limited (the Company), which comprise the
statement of financial positson 8s at 31 December 2018, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehangive incoms,
ihe statement of changes in squity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial stalements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state thal we have obfained all
the information and explanations which, 10 the best of our knowledge and belied, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and 10 the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial position,
the staternent of profit or loss, the statemend of comprehensive mocome, the statement of changes in sguity and the statement of
cash flows together with the notes forming part thereol conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (X1X of 2017), in the mannear 50 required and respectively
(give a true and fair view of the staie of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of the profit, the comprehansive Incoms,
the changes in equity and its cash fiows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our aud In accordance with International Standards on Audifing (I5As) as applicable in Pakistan, Our
responsibilities under those standards are further describad in the Audtor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our repart. Wi are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountant's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartesed Accountants of Pakistan (the
Codejand we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our awdit of the financial
statements of the current peniod. These matters wene addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whobe,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Fallowing are the key audst matters:

Az disclosed In note 19 o the accompanying | Duraudit procedores included, amongs! oihers:

financial statements, the stock in trade balance | - Obtaining an understanding of internal controls over valuation of stock

constitutes 35 % of total agsets of the Compary. | in trade and testing (heir design, implementation and operating

These are valued al lower of cost and net realizable | effectivensss,

valug. The cost of work in process (WIP) and | - Assessing the Company's accounting policies for valuation of stock in

finished goods is determined &t average | trade and compliance of those policies with applicable accounting
standards,

48 Highnoon Laboratories Limited
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Mey Audit Matters

T ey

1.Valuation of stock in trade:

maniuticturing cost including a proporfion of
appropriate owerheads. The basis for allocation of
overheads includes management judgment. This, in
combination with the significant share of stock in
trade a5 part of total assets, made us conclude that
valuation of stock in trade is a key awdit matter of our
audit.

- Obtaining an understanding and reviewing the managemient's
determination of net readizable vaiue (NRY) and key estimates adopted
including future selling prices. future cost to complete work in process
a&nd the COStS necessary 10 make the sales and theer basis;

- Physical attendance at inventory count and reconciling the count
results fo the inverdory Histings 1o test the complatenass of data;

- Evaluating management’s basis for the allocation of cost and
owérheads,

- Bubstantive analbtical and other procedures including the
recalculation of valuation based on accounding and costing policy; and

- Assessment of the disclosures made in respect of the accounting
policies and the dedass of inventory balances heid by the Comgpany al
the year end.

2. Preparation of financial statements under Companies Azl, 2017

As referred to in note 3 to the accompamying
financial staterents, the Companies Act 2007 (the
Art) became applicable for the first time for the
preparation of the Company's annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
The Act forms an idegral part of the statutory
financial reporting framework as applicable to the
Company and amongst others, prescribes the
nature and content of disclosures in refation to
various elements of the financial statements.

In case of the Company, spécific additional
disclosures and changes to the existing disclosures
have been included in the financial stalements &
referred toin nofe 3 1o the financial statements.

Further, the Company has also changed its
accounting podicy relating to preséntation and
measurement of surplus on revaluation of fixed
assels as a conseguence of the application of the Act
with retrospective effect. The impact of the said
changé in accounting palicy has been disclosed in
note 6 to the financial staternents.

The above changes and enhancements i 1he
financial staternents are considersd important and 3
key audit matter because of the volume and
significance of the changes in the financial
statements resulting from the transition 1o the new
reporting réquirements under the Act.

Highnoon Laboratories Lamited

Dur key audit procedures lo address this risk included the following:

- We assessed the procedures applied by the management for
idgentitying the changes required in the financial statements due the
application of the Act,

- Wa reviewed the additional disclosures and changes 10 the prévigus
dischosures basad on the néw raguirements;

- We evaluated the sources of infermation used by the management for
the preparation disclosures and the internal consistency of such
disclosures with other elements of the financial statements; and

- In respect of the change in accounting policy for the accounting and
presentation of revaluation surplus as referred to in note G to the
financial statements; we assassed the accounting implcations in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting standards and
evaluated its apphication in the context of the Company,

a7
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsibie for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report. but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's repart thereon.

Dur opinéon on the financil statements does not cover the other information and we do nol express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon,

In connection with owr audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is 10 read the other information and. in doing 5o,
consider whether the other information is matenially inconsisient with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to beé materially misstated. i, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this othar imformation, we are required 1o report that fact. Wi have nathing 1o report in this régard.

Responsibilities o Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Stalements

Management is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards s applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary 1o enable the preparation of financial siatements that are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, mattérs retated t0 going concern and using the going concern Basis of accounting unless
managemant githér intends to liquidate the Company or 10 cease opérations, or has no realistic altiermative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for oversesing the Company’s financlal reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audil of the Financial Statements

Dur obgectives ane fo obfain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial staiements as a whobe are free from material
misstatament, whether due b0 fraud or rror, and 10 rsSue an auditar's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 3

high bewel of assurance, but i nota guarantes that an audit conducted in accondance with 15As as applicabba i Pakistan will always
detect & material misstatement when it exists. Misstaterments can arise from fraud or error and are considered matedial if,

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonabiy be expected 10 influénce the ConemiC decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with 1545 a3 applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and mainiain professional
skepticism throughout the awdit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of matérial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive 10 those risks, and obtain udit evidence that is sufficient and apgropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from emror. as fraud may invohve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrépresentations, or the ovarride of internal
control.

= Dbtan an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design awdit procedures that sre appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an apinion on the efiectiveness of the Company™s internal control

= Evaluate the appropriatenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disciosures made by managamant.

48 Highnoon Laboratories Limited
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*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the aud
avidence obtained, whethar a material uncertainty exsts refated 0 events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Compamys ability to continue as a going concerm. If we conclude that a matérial uncertainty exists, we are réquired 10
draw attention i our auditor's report 10 the related disclosures in the financial statéments or, i§ such disclosures are
inadequate, to modily our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our audstor's
riport. However, future events or conditions may causa the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

> Evaluate the owerall preséntation, structure and content of the financial statements. including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statemenis represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presantation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, amang other matiers. the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identity during our audit

We also provide the board of direchors with a statemant that we have complied with relevant ethical requinements régarnding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matiers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, refated saleguards.

From the matiers communicated with the board of direciors, we determing thoss matiers that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. W describe thess matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosura about the matier or when, in extremely raré circumstances,
we determing that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would

reasonabhy be expacied to Dutweigh the puldic interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)  Proper books of account have baen kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b}  Thestatement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comperehensive intome, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash fiows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act, 2007 (X0of 2007) and are in agreemaant with the books of account and returns;

€] Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extanded during the year were for the purpose of the Company's
business; and

d) Zakat deductible af source under the Zakat and Lishe Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980), was deducted by the Company and
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Naseem Akbar,

T‘ . 71—
Chartered Accountants
Engagement Pariner. Naseéem Akbar
Lahore: 01 Aprid 2018
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Statement of Financial Position As at 31 December 2018
2018 07 1 January 2017 2018 2017 1 January 2017
Mo Fupees =~ Fupes 0 Pupes Mols  Fupees =~ Fuptes __ Rupees
Restated Restated Restated Restated
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ASSETS
EQLITY Hon-Current assets
Share capital and reserves Property, plant and equipment 16 976,068,012 934 825,946 728,634,523
Authorized share capital Intangible assets 17 . 5073017 21,765,868
50,000,000 {2017: 50,000,000} Ordinasy Long term investment 18 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000
shares of Rs. 10 each 500,000,000 500,000,000 250,000,000 Long term deposits 14,020,764 12,695,663 12,111,613
Long term advances 29,316,392 16.074,304 15,529,356
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital T 286073930 255,423 160 228,056,400 1,219,405 166 1,168,668, 930 78,041,380
Rivanug réseres 2.213,966.374 1,776,525,305 1.376,455,650
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and eguipment 8 370,409 400 384 D03, 155 200 883,736
Total Equity . 2E70449704 2415950620 1,814,395.795
Nom-currént labilities ! - T : Currend assels - B _
Liabilities against assets subject 10 finance lease ] 44 486 054 14,442 288 16,843,781 Siock in trade 19 1,352 928.054 1.115.538,075 092 637,743
Long term advances 10 44,110 306 J5.516.612 27,248 679 Trade debts 20 201 500,756 250,602,158 75,154,453
Deferred liabifitias i a74,124.390 373,229,929 312,920,256 Advances 21 75263456 STATSAT 74 672,999
462,720,790 473,188,529 357,012,916 Trade geposits and short term prepayments 2 30,572 873 24,329,555 17,423 457
Current liabiities Profit accrued 318,836 2,015,658 1,235,074
Tratse and other payables 12 342711626 396,054 603 463,044 827 Dther receivables 23 3,457 468 4,619,473 3,341 447
Uinciaimed Dividend 20,175.464 40,194,970 28,767 015 Loan to subsidiary 24 20.000.000 20,000,000
Mark up accrued 30476 64,035 18,622 Tax refunds due from the Governmént i 7,638,162 5,611,106 10,413,130
Short term borrowing 13 - Short term investments 26 100,000,000
Current portion of long term leabikties 14 36,956 B30 27 565,672 27,104,927 Cash and bank balances 277 779,975,543 £12.566,431 680,699 860
Provision for taxation - net 38,024 485 50,101,868 143 275 421 2551664207 2193452667  1,855578,163
| 4aTEe8BEr 522981148 662210812
. wmsen sewmon 1oz o S
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ITTI069.375 3362121587 2833619523 TOTAL ASSETS ITTI069.375 3362121597  2.833.619.523
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 15
The annexed nates from 1 to 47 form an integeal part of these unconsolidatied financial statements.
Dr. Adeel Abbas Habderi Taufig Ahmed Khan Javed Hussain
Chigf Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
50 Highnoon Labaratories Limited Highnoon Laboratories Limited 51
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Statement of Profit or Loss

For The Year Ended 31 December 2018 2018 2017
5, NSO o 0 SOSBEEE - ool
Sales - net 28 7.503.100,506 5.971.2268,748
Cost of sales 29 4,002 668 618 3.125,337.924
Gross profit 3,500 431 8348 2,845 890 824
Distribution, selling and promotional expenses a0 | 2026730601 | | 1509737319
Administrative and genéral axpenses k1| 349 634 TAV 270,080,061
Research and development expenses 32 3,789.270 3,606,954
Other opérating expénses 1 &3, 654 414 B4,485,841
2,468.822.242 1,957,910175
Othar income oal 33.044.59 20.277.764
Operating Profit 1,064 654,037 917258413
Finance costs 35 8,387 492 4,950,755
Profit before taxation 1,056,268, 545 912 298 658
Taxation 3 330,375,342 285 834,489
Profit for the year 725,891 203 626,464,169
Earnings per share - basic and diluted ar 2537 21.90
The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
Dv. Adaed Abbas Haideri Taufig Ahmid Khan Javed Hussan
Chief Executive Officer Directos Chiet Financial Otficer
52 Highroon Laboratories Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income

ANNUAL BEPDET m

Far The Yesr Ended 31 December 2018 018 27
o SR
Restaled

Profit for the year 725 881,203 626 464,169
Other comprehensive Incomes
Othar comprehensive income fo be reclassified fo profif or

loss in subsegquent penods:
Othar comprehensive income not to be reclassified ta profit or

loss in subsequent pariods;
Remeasurement adjustments on defined benefit plan - ne of tax (17.263.209) | | (11.280,880) |
Transfier from surplus on revaluation of property. plant and equipment

on account of mcremental depreciation - net of fax 14,886,999 6,101,057
Total other comprehensive loss - net of fax (2376, 204) (5,179,823)
Total comprehensive income for the year 723,514,999 621,284,346
The annexed notes from 1 1o 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial s1atements.
Dr. Adeel Abbas Haideri Taufiq Ahmed Khan Javed Hussain
Chigt Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
Highnoon Laboratories Limited 53
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Statement of Cash Flows
For The Year Entded 31 Deceamber 2018 et l:] 217
DN e e e e e e e e e e s M e oo - -
CASH FLOWS FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before fax 1,056, 266545 912,208 658
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation of operating fixed assets 16.1.1 28.044,124 78,578,655
Amortization of intangible assets 171 507307 16,692 851
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 3 (15492 271) {10,867, 854)
Exchange (gain) / l0ss - net 3 {355,183) 7,643,364
Provision for slow moving and obsolete stocks 1891 4024 543 2,683,726
Provigion for defined benefit obligation 1133 49,030,111 44210142
Provision for Worker's Profit Participation Fund 123 56,711,086 48,011,017
Finance costs 35 8.387 492 4,959,755
Provision for doubtful debts 202 | - || __isnme2 |
205.422 889 193,453 068
Profit belore working capial changes 1.261 689,434 1,105,751.726
Working capital changes:
{Increass) / decrease in current assets:
Stock in trade - {Eﬂ.n.ﬁnﬁi] ﬁ!ﬁ;ﬂﬁ.ﬂ!ﬂ '
Trade debis {30,462 364) (177.108,757)
Advances {17,384 285) 16,793 828
Trade deposits and short térm prepayments (6.243.318) {6,906, 098)
Profit accrued 1.606.822 (a0 584)
Othier receivables 1,361,985 (1,478,026)
Loan t0 subsidiary - (20,000,000}
Tax refund due from government (2,027 056) 4 B2 024
InCreasa / (decreass) in current Rabilities:
Trade and other payables - (109.235 839) (123,548, 447) |
(403,727 817} (433.811,118)
Cash generated from operations 'E‘Eisi:m' T 'm'ana
Taxes paid {359.170.983) (381.579,171)
Gratuity paid (57 185.554) {18,386, 753)
Finance cost paid (8.421.051) (4.914,342)
Mat cash fow generated from aperating activities 433,184 229 267,060, 342

annual repost 2018

Statement of Cash Flows

Far The Year Ended 31 December 2018 2018 2007
e e e s s e e e N I o o M
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment | @e217212) | | (65.987470) |
Additions In long term advances (13,242 088) (544, 948)
Proceeds from disposal of short term investment - net 100,000,000 {100.000,000)
Increase in long term deposits - net (1,325.101) {584,050}
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 16.1.4 37,028,793 28,035,197
Mot cash fiows generatisd / used in investing activities 23,2443 (139,081,271)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINARCING ACTIVITIES

Repaymant of finance lease liabilities - net {23,959, 766 (25,887 752)
Long term advances - net 10,382 924 12,195 237
Ovidend paid (275,442666) | | (182.410,985)
Mest cash flows wsed in financing activities {285, 019.508) (196, 112, 5007
Met encrease in cash and cash equivabents t67T 408,112 (68,133 429)
Cash and cash eguehvalents at baginning of the year 612 566 431 G380 699 860
Cosh and cash vquivalonts at end of the year & TR 1256681
The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Dr, Adesl Abbas Hasderi Taufig Ahmed Khan Javed Hussain
Chigf Executive Officer Chigl Financial Officer
Highnoon Laborataries Limited 85
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For The Year Ended 31 Decembar 2018

T Aavena movony i

e || e

Aupees

Hadarn s ot 0 Jaary 2007 278,056,400 - 14,000,000 1761455650 1,076 455650 1604 512050
Adprstmest dus 10 change m sccounting polcy sate - & = 2R B T3 - - - 200 BAY T
Balance m 4t 01 Junary P07 - estaied ZEDEA00  MOBBLTIE  11AD0D000 1262484650 13764650 1814308708
Priafil for he pads aades 31 Dacermtet 2017 [ BEF 1 626464 160] 62464108 E26464160
Difser comgrshenaive ks I |_I1.2H}m 4_11mm (118 RE0y
Total comgrshensive income o te ysar R UGS IEI89  G10EE080 615183380
Suipdas Bansierred 0 ascomuddlad gools
O ae el o ncreruet e depiscianion rekiliseg 1 Surplus o8

reauahon af property. plam and eqepment - nel of s 16301 057 GALBST 6087
Effect on change i tax rate o0 accoenl of wiphs o property,

pant and equeprnent - - - -
Efect ol change s phopoimies af neimal sse TT.A440 - - - T7 A48
Adtien dunng e year m reaiuien sarghis 180,040, 0T - - : 190443027
Tramartion with ovstsrs of M Company, Froognasd sirectly

& myaily - Dabifbans
Issuance of trones shares @ 17% 27,366,760 . [TI6ETE0} (27066760
Fiead gendend & Ra. § 50 per shaee for he vew

ended 31 [ecember 2085 " (V93847 Sy (103847 Sl (163 84T S0
Balance 31 B 11 Decemisr 2017 - resimed MEAZII60  JBA0ODISE 14000000 1BEISIS.005 17752505 2415051520
Batanee oy ot 1 Swugzy 2018 255 75160 4000000 1653 EFSI05 1 TTESEA0S D 415051630
Effect of change ia accousting policy 45 stated in note - & - 384,003,185 - ¥ +
Balanie 22 35 1 Janiiary 2018 ERAZIIG0  IBADDLISS 114000000 1662525305 1:rrl.ua.m u1m1.uu
Profit o1 1he year oedes 31 December 2018 - | resmmael TS0 20
Othey comprehense s = (17363, 500) m‘.i’ﬁ‘lm (1. 553.000)
Tiotal compretensive income Jof e yedr - - TOAGZED00 TORGZAO00  PORAZE000
Gan it S anferirend 10 2w udaled prold
D aceout of ncsamantsl depiseishin rlLng 10 aurmius b

revatuahion of properdy. plam and sqesprend - et of s (14 886, 500, T4BBE GO0 14856000
Efect on change in lay rafe an aocownt of surplus oo property,

Praang ared equrprnend - 1,700,014 - - - 1,001 013
EFact of changs i proportios ol notmal e (407 ey {47 TGy
Trarssaction with owesss of the compaisy. recognieed dieclly

i Aty - Dabfutens
ISt of Do Shares @ 1% MBI . (A0E50TM (060,770 N
Foa tendend @ H3_ 10 per $hare v The yew

000 31 Decambr 2017 e - ;sANNN SSAT @SSe00
Bdlnr-zn tilﬂnﬂrﬂfl'l-'rll H.ﬂﬂ.ﬂfl mmm 11¢mm zmm u:uu.an ammm

The prngiad sabed rom 1 0y 47 foem a0 niegrsl part o TR URC DRSO rancisl TrRmamY.

Taufig Mmﬂ Ehan
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For Thi Year Ended 31 December 2018

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION
Highnoon Laboratories Limited ("the Company”) was incorporated as a private limited company in Pakistan in year 1984
under the Companies Act, 1913 which was repaaled by Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed with the anaciment of
Companies Act, 2017) and converted into an unquoted public limited company in 1985, Its shares are quoted on Pakistan
Stock Exchange since Novernber 1994 The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture, import, sale and marketing
of pharmaceutical and allied consumer products. The registered office of the Company is situated at 17.5 Km, Multan Road,

Lahore,
11 Geographicallocation and addrésses of major busingss units of the Company are a5 under;
Busingss Uinits l Geographical Location [ Address
Ragional Marketing Dffice Lahore 2nd Floor , 587 - Block H-11,

Abdul Hag Road, Opposite Emporium
Mall Gate No. 5, Johar Town, Lahore.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS I THE CURRENT REPORTING YEAR
The Compamy’s financial position and performance was particularly affected by the following events and transactions
during the reparting period:

s The accounting policies for surplus on revaluation of property, plani and eguipment was changed during the year dee o

enactment of the Companies Act. 2017, Consequently, some of the amounts reported in the prior years have been restated
(note &).

«  Dueto the first time application of financial reporting requirements under the Companigs Act, 2017, including disclosure
and presentation requirsments of the fourth schedulie of the Companies Act, 2017, some of the amounts reported for the
previous peniod have been reclassified (note 47).

+  Forxdetailed descussion about the Company’s performance please refer to the Director's report.
3. BASGIS OF PRESENTATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

11 Statemantof compliance
311 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

. International Financial Reporting Standard {IFRS Standards) issued by the Imternational Accounting Standard Board
(IASE) as notified under the Companses Act, 2017 and

. Provision and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

. Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Compandes Act, 2017 have baen followed.




FMBiRAL BTPOET M ANNUAL REPOST M

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 31 December 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements

For The Year Endéd 31 December 2018

3.1.2 The Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) has also brought certain changes with regard to préparation and presentation of
manczal statements of the Company, These changes atso include change in respect of surplus on révaluation of
propérty. plant and equipmeént as fully explained in nate 4,7 and 6,

Further, the disclosure requirement contained bn the fourth schedule to the Act has been revised, resulting inthe:

= Elimination of duplicate disclosures with the IFRS disclosure requirements, and

« Incorporation of significant additional dischosures.

Keeping in vidw of the above. the presentation of these Hinancial statements has been realigned with the provisions

contained i the Act along with the impact on the recognition and measurement of the revaluation surplus on
property, plant and equipment in sguity.

3.2  Basisof preparation

Thess financial statements have been prépared wnter the historical cost convention, sxcept for révaluation of certam
assets as referred 10 in Note 4.7 and recognition of cértain employees retiremient banefits at present value, In these
fmancial stalemants all the transaclions have been accounted for on acCrual basis,

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company inwhich investment in subsidiary is
acoounted for on the basis of direct equity interest rather than on the basss of reported results. Consolidated financial

statements are prepared separately.
3.3 Functipnaland presentation currancy

These financial statemants are presented in Pak rupee, which is also the functional currency of the Company. Figures
have been rounded off to the nearest rupes, unbess otherwise stated

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
EFFECTIVE IN THE CURRENT PERIOD

The Company has adopled the foRowing revised standard, amendments and interpretation of IFRS which became efective
forthe corrent year,

Standard or Intarpretaticn

IAS 7 Staternent of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiative - (Amendment)

1A% 12 Income Taxes —Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized losses (Amendmenis)
IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The adoption of the above amendments, interpretations and improvements did not have any material sffect on the financial
statemants.

4.1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards reguires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumplions that aflect the application of accounting polickes and reporied
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, The estimates, associated assumptions and judgments are
based on historical experienca and vanous other factors that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances,
the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that ane not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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The estimates and undertying assumptions aré réviewed on &n 0ngoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are

recognized in the period in which the estimale is revised | revision affects only that period, or in the périod of
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and fulure periods.

The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to Company’s financial statements or where
judgments were exarcised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Notes

Staff retirement benedits 44

Propérty, pkant and equipment 4.7

- Intangibles assets 48
= Impairment of non-financial assets 4,14
- Taation 418
- Provisions 4.23
- Impairment of financial assets 4.24

SUMMARY OF SIGNIRICANT ACCOLUINTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those of the
previous financial year except for s mentionedin note 3.1 and as follows:

Segmant rapariing

The kery financial decision maker considers the whole busingss as one operating segment.
Staft refisement benefis

Defined benetit plan

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all of s permanent employees who have joined on or
before 19 March 2013, under which benedits are paid on cessation of employment subject to a minimum qualitying
period of service. Dualified actuaries have carried out the valuation as at 31 December 2018 using the project wnit
credet method.

Remeasurement adjustments ame recognized in othér comprehensive income when they occur. Amounts recorded
in profit or loss are lmited (o current and past senice Cost, gaing or losses on setiaments, and ned interest income /
{expensa). All other changes in net defined benefii Kabikity are recognized in other comprehensive income with ng
subseguent racycling 1o profit or loss acoount. The distinction between shor term and other long term employse
benefits will be based on the expecied timing of settliament rather than the amployees entitiement 1o benefits.

Defined contribution pdan

The Company also operates a recognized provident fund scheme for all of its permanent employees in accordance
with the trust deed and rules made there under. Equal monthly contributions are made to the fund by the Company
and employees at the rate of 8.33% (2017 8.33%) of basic salary and cost of living aliowance.

Compensalsd Baw absences

Provision for compensated leave absences is made to the extent of value of accumulated accrued leaves/ leave fare
assistance of the employees at the balance shaet date as per entitiement on the basis of last drawn satary. The
managers of other executives are not allowed 10 carry forward un-avasled leaves while labour can carry forward
mandmum 10 un-gvased ieaves for a maximum périod of ong year.
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Foseign Curréndy tranglation

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are transiated at the rates of éxchange prévaling at the

date. Non-monetary assets and Habilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in forefgn currency
are transiated (nto rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. Non-monetary assets and [Eabilities
denominated in forsign currency thal are stated at fair value are translated into rupees at exchange raies prevailing at
ihe date when fair values are determined. Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pak rupees at
axchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. All exchange gains/losses on foreign currency transactions arg
faken to profit or loss account.

Trade and other payables

Liabilithes far trade and other payables are carmieéd ai cost which ks the fair valee of consideration 10 be pakd In the
future, for goods and services o be recelved, whether or not biled to the Company.

Property, plant and equpment
Dwmitd Dperating assots:

Thise dre stated at cost or revalusd amount jess accumutated depreciation and impairment except for freehold land,
building, plant and machinéry which is stated at revalved amount, Revaluation is carried out svery five years unless
darlier revaluaton i neces siated.

Deprecation ischarged on reducing batance method at the rates in node 16.1 to write off the cost/ revalued amount of
an asset over its estimated useful life. The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted, if s impact on depréciation is significant, Full month's depreciation is charged on additions, while
no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal or daletion of assets. Surplus on révaluation of fhed assels
refating 1o incremental dépreciation {nel of deferred iaxation) i transferrad directly W0 equity.

Subsequent expenditure redating to an item of property. plant and equipmend that has already been recognized Is
added 10 the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefis, in excess of the
originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will fiow 1o the Company as per recognition
criteria, All other expenditure in the form of normal repair and mainiénance is charged to profit os [0S account as
and when incorred,

Anitém of property, plant and equipment |3 derecognized upon disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains or kosses on disposal of fiked assets are included in income curmently,

except that the related surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (net of deferred taxation) Is
transferred directly to unappropriated profit

A revaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income (OC1) and presented as 3 separate part of equity.
However, the increase is recorded in the statemant of profit or loss to the extent it reverses a revaluation deficit of the
same asset previpusly. A decrease as a result of revaluation (s recognized in the statement of profit or 10ss however, a
decrease is recorded in statement of other comprehensive income t0 the extent of any credit balance entry in
revaluation surplus in respect of same assets. The revalustion reserve i nol available for distribution to the
Company's shareholders,

An annual transfer from the asset revaluation surplus to retained earnings is made for the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carnying amount of the asset and the depreciation based on assets original cost.
Additionally, accematated depreciation as al the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of
the assel and the nef amount is restated 1o the revaloed amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revalualion surplus
refating 1o the particular asset being sold is transferred to unappropriated profit.

Leasehold assats

Leases, where all the risks and réwards incidental to ownership of the leased assets have been transferred to the
Company, are classified as finance laases. Assets subject 10 finance baase are stated at the lowsr of present value of
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minimum lgase payments undér the lease agraaments and tha fair value of the leased agsets at the commengement

of lease, less accumulated depreciation and ary identsfied impairment loss.

The refated rental obligations, net of finance costs, are Included in liabilities against assets subject to finance lease as
referred to in Note 9. The labdlities are classified as current and bong term depending upon the timing of the payment.

Each lease payment is alkocated betwean the liabikity and finance costs 50 as to produce a constant peripdic rate of
brferest on thie balance outstanding. The interest element of the rental is charged io profit or loss acoount ovér the
kaase term.

Assels acquired under finance léase are depreciated over the useful Hves of assets on reducing bakance method at
the rates given in Nofe 16,1, The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed al each financial year end and
adjusted, if its impaci on depreciaton IS significant. Depreciation of leased assets i charged 10 profit or loss
account, Depreciation on adddons in leased asseis i charged from the moath in which an assed is acquired whibe no
depreciation i changed for the month in which the asset is disposed off transferred to freshoid assets.

Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss and includes the expenditures on
material, labour and appropriate overheads directly relating to the project. Thesa costs are transferred to fied
a55als % and when assets are available for intended use.

listangible assets

Intangible assets inchude Intelectisal Property, Rights, Trademarks and Software, which aré non-monetary assets
without physical substance. These are recognized a1 cost. which comprisas s purchase price, non-refundable
purchase taxes and amy directly attributable expenditures.

Changes in the expected useful lives or the expected pattérn of consumption of future economic benefits at the rate
in Note 16, embodied mn the intangible assets, are accounted for by changing the recognized period or amortization
method, as appropriate, and treated &5 a change in accounting estimate. The recognized expense on infangible
assets with finite lives i recognized n the profit or 10ss account inthe expense category, consistent with the function
of the intangible asset.

The carrying values of intangible assefs are reviewed for impairment when avenls or chamges in circumsiances
indicate the carnying value may not be recoverable. Wl any such indication axists and wheare the carrying values
exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets or cash-genarating units are written-down 0 their recoverable
AMOuI.

Subsequent expenditures on intangibie assets are recognized as an expensa when it s incurred unless the
expenditure will enable the asset 1o generate future sconomic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard
of performance,

Borrowing cosis

Finance cost on kong term liabilities / lease Babilities which are specifically obtained for the acquisition of qualitying
assets i, assets thal take a substantial period of time 10 get ready for their inended use, are Capitalized up to the
data of commissioning of réspective asset. All other interest, mark-up and expenses are charged to profit or kss
account in the period in which they are incurmed.

[nvEstments
Subsidiary Company

Investment in subsidiary company s measured at cost as per the requirements of 1AS-27 "Separale Financial
Statements”. However, at subseguant reporting dates, the Company reviews the carrying amounts. of the investmenm
and its recoverability 10 determing whether there is an indication that such investments have sulfered an impairmend
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loss. M such mdication éxists the carmying amount of the investment is adjusted to the extent of impairment koss.
Impairment Ixsses are recognized as an expense in profit or loss account.
Ivestments available for sale - Duoled securities

Investment intended to be hedd for an unidentified persod of time which may be sobd in response to need for lquidity
of changes to inferest rades, exchange rades or equity prices are classified as available for sale.

Investments classified as "avalable for sale” are inifially measured at cost, being the fair value of consideration gisen.
Al subsequent reporting dates, these investments are measured af fakr valug, The invesiments for which quoted
price ks nol available, are measured at cost as itis not possible to apply any other valuation methodology.

Unrealirzed gains or bosses anising from changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehénsive income and
presented within equity a3 reserve. Cumulative gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are included in the
net profit or 10ss for the period in which an investment is derecognized or deder mined to be impaired.

All “requiar way' purchases and sales of shares are recognized on the trade date, i.e. the date that the Company
commits 10 purchase/sell the asset.

Hockin trade
Theseare valued at the lower of cost and net réalizable value. Cost Is determined using the following basks :
Raw materals = 0N MOving averige
Work-in-process - 2l estimated manufacturing cost including appropriate overheads
Finished goods

- Imparted - 0N Maving average

- Local - on annua average manufacturing cost incleding appropriate overheads
Merchandise in transit/pledged - at imvosce value plus other charges incurred therean

Net realizable value signifies the estimated sefling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs
necessary 1o make the sale. The Company revises the carrying amount of stock-in-trade on & reguiar basis and a
provision & made for obsolescence, for fems which are siow-moving and'or identified as a surplus 0 the
Company's requirement. A provision is made for the excess of book valees over the estimated net realizable value,

Trade dabis

These are initially carried at original invoice amount, which is the fair value of consideration 10 be received in future
and subsequently measured at amortized cost less impairment loss, if any. A provision for impairment of trade debts
i established when there is an objective evidence that the Company will not be able 1o collect all amounts due
acoording to the original tarms of receivablz.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow staternent, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and balance with banks
in current and saving accounts.

Impairment of non-financial asseis

The carmying amount of the assels excapt for imeentories are reviewed al each reporiing date to identify the
clrcumstances indicating the occurrence of impairment loss or reversal of previously recognized impalrment
losses. i amy such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assel is estimated.

An impainment loss B recognized i the carrying amount of an asset or S cash-generating unit excesds its
recoverable amount. A cash-penerating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that
are largety independent from other assets and groups.
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Where an impairment 1055 subsequently reverses. the carrying amount of such agset is increased o the axtent that it

does not exceed the carmying amount that would have been determined, nat of depreciation and amortization, if ng
impairment 105s has been charged. Areversal of the impairment I0ss i recognized in intame.

Rivetsiug recogrison

Revenue fram local sales is recognized when risk and reward incadental to ownership are transferred i . on dispatch
of goods 1o the customers, Export goods are considered dispatched when bill of lading / airway bill i prepared for
shipment 10 CUSHiMErs.

Return on bank deposits is accounted for on time proportion basis and other income (s recognized on accrual basis.
Transactions with related parties and iransfer pricing

The Company under the direction of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan's Notfication SRO 66(1Y
7003 dated 22 January 2003 adopted the cost-plus method of transfer pricing for the determination of arm’s length
prices with associated companies/related parties except for the assets sold to employees at written down value
under the employee's car scheme as approved by the Board of Directors.

Parties are sakd to be related, i they are able to infivenca the operating and financial decisions of the Company and
wice versa,

Research and development cos!

These costs are charped to profil or boss account a5 and when incuned. except for any development cosis which are
recognized as intangible assets when it is probabde that the development projact will be a Success and certain
crileria, inchiding commercial and technological feasibdlity have been metl.

liarah
Thie fjarah payments under an ijarah agreement are treated in accordance with ‘Isiamic Finance Accounting Standard
2 ljarah' issued by Instilde of Chartered Accountants of Pakisian and adopted by Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan. |arah rental under such agreements are charged to profit or loss account on a straight line
basis over the Harah ferm.

Taxakion
Imcome tax on prodil or [oss for the year comprises current and deferrad tax.
Currem

Provision of current tax is based on the taxable income, alternative corporate Lax O minimum tax provisions in
accordance with Income Tax Ordinance 2001, The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or
tax rates expecied 1o apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax #iso includes adjustments,
where considerad necessary, 10 provision for tax made in prévious years arising from assessments framed during
the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method for all temporary differences at the
reporting date betwesn tax base of assets and liabilties and their carrying amounts fos financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabdlity is recognized for all taxable termporary différences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temparary differences, Carry forward of unused fax credits and unused tax 10sses, if any, 1o 1he gxtent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible termporary difference, carry-
forsmrd of unused kax credits and unused Bx losses can be ulilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax asset is reviewad at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
i5 no longer probable that sufficient faxable profit will be availabie to allow 3l or part of the diferred inCome tax
assets to be utilized.
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Deferred tax assots and Rabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply to the périod when the
Rability is sattied based on tax rates that have been anacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date,

420 Dwidend
Dividend to shareholder's is recognized as a liability in the period in which it is approved.

421 Rmancial instruments

These comprise linancial assets and financial labilitles. Significant financial assets include trade debis, advances,
profit accreed and deposits, other receivables and cash and bank balances. Significant financial liabilities include
short term barrowings, trade and other payables, labilities in respect of leasad assets and mark up payable on bank
Borrowings.

Financial assets and financial labilities are recognired when the Company becomes a party 1o the contractual
provisions of the instrument and assets and Habdlities are stated ol fair value. The Company derecognizes the
financial asset and liabdities when it ceases 10 be a party to such contractual provisions of the instruments. Any gain
or loss on derecognizing of tha financial assets and financial liabslities is taken to profit or kess account currently. The
particular measurement methods adopted are disciosad in the individual policy statemeént associated with each
item.

422 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilitiss

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount ks reporied in the statemeant of financial position if the
Company has legally anforceabse right to offset the recognized amounts and the Company intends 10 settle either on
& nirt basis or realios the asset and settie the lability simulaneoushy.

423 Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a presant, legal or constructive oblipation as a result of past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resournces embodying economic benefits will be required 1o setile the obdigation
of which refiable estimate can be made.

4.24 Impairment of financial assets

The Compamy assesses at each reporting date whether there is amy objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial asseds s impasred. A financial asset or a group of financial assets i deemed to be impaired if, and
oady i, there is objective svidanca of impalrment as a result of one or mode events thal hkas oocurred afier the smitial
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that foss event has an impact on the estimated fulure cash
flows of the financial assef or the group of financial assats that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of the impairment may inchude indscators that the debtor or a group of deblors is experiencing significant
fizancial difficulty. default or delinguency In interest or principal payments, the probability that they vall enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

The amount of [0S s measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
astimated future cash flows discounted at the financial assat’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is raduced and the amouwn of the loss i recognized in the profit or loss account. I, in a subsequent period,
the amouwnt of the impairment loss decreases and the decreass can be redated objectively to an event oocurring after

the impairment was recognized, the reversal of the previously recognized impairment |0ss is recegnized in profit or
loss account.

Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Approved Accounting Standards that are nol yel effective

The following revised standards, amendments and interpredations with respect to the appeoved accounting standards as
applicabde in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below and have not been adopted early by the Company:

& Highnoon Laboratories Limited
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Effecinve date;
Standard or Intarpretation (Aol ppricefs beaginning on or after)
IAST&IASE Presentation of Financial Stalements & Accounting Policies, Changes n 01 January 2020
Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of Materiad, 1o clarify the
definition of material and its alignment with the definition used i the
Conceptual Framework (amendments).
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and LAS 28 Investment in Associates and Kot et Hinalized
Joint Ventures - Sake or Contribution of Assets between an (nvestor and fs
Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment].

IFR515 Revenué from Contracts with Customers, 01 July 2018

IFRS9 Pregsayment Features with Negative Compensation - (Amendments), 01 January 2019

IFRS 16 Leases. 0 January 2019

A5 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures - (Amendments), 01 January 2020

IA519 Employee benefits [amendments) - Plan Amendment, Curtaibment or 0 Janusary 2019
Saktlement.

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments. 01 January 2019

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transiations and Advance Consideration - (Amendments). 01 January 2020

Effiective date: *{Annual

periods ending

on or after)”

IFRSS Financial Instruments * 30 Jung 2019

*The SECP has modified the edfective date of application of IFRS 9 in place of |1AS 39, through SR0. 229 (12018, dated: 14
February, 2019, as reporting pariod / ywear ending on or after June 30, 2019,

The Company expects that the adoption of the abowve standards, amendments and interpretations will have no material effect
i thve peerbod of initial application except for IFRS 16 - Leases, IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments and FRS 15 - Revenue from

Contract with Customers. The management of the Company is in the process: of assessing the impact of changes laid down
bythe IFRS &, IFRS 16 and IFRS 15 on its financlal statements.

The [ASE has also (ssued the revised Concepteal Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framswork) in March
2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020 for preparers of financial statements who
develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framewark. The revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and
none of the concepls override those in any standard or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptuwal
Framework i [0 assist 1ASE in developing standards. 10 help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no
appibcable standard in place and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the standards.

In addition to the above, the following new standards have been issued by 1ASE which are yet io be notified by the SECP for

the purpase of applicability in Pakistan: |ASE affactive date
(Annud perigds
_Deginning on or ¥i)
IFRS1 First-tame Adoption of Internationa Financial Reporting Standards 01 July 2009
IFRS14  Regulatory Deferral Accounts 01 January 2016
IFRS17  Insurance Contracts 01 January 2021

The above amendments and interpretations are not expected to have any significant impact o0 the financial statements of
the Comipany.
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6. Changesinaccountng pokty:

During current year, the Company changed ils accounting polkcy for the revaluation surplus on property, plant and
equipment, in accordance with requirements of the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan under the
Companies Act, 2017. Previously, the Company's accounting policy for surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment was in accordance with the provisions of section 235 of the repeaied Companies Ordinanca, 1984.The repealed
Ordinance specified the accounting treatment for the surplus / (deficit) on resalsation of property, plant and equipment,
wherein, a deficit arising on revaluation of a particular property was 10 be adjusted against the tofal balance in the surplus
account or, if no surplus existed, was to be charged to the profit or loss account a5 an impairment of the assets. Furiher, the
réviluation surplus on property. plant and equipment was shown as a separate item below equity, in accordance with the
presentation reguirement of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984,

The Companigs Act, 2017 has not refained the abowve mentioned spacific accounting and preséntation requirements of
revaluation surplus on propérty, plant and equipment. Consequently, this impacted the Company™s actounting policy for
revaluation surplus on proparty. plant and equipment, and now the rélated accounting and presentation réquirernents set
ourt in IFRS are being followed by the Company. The new accounting policy is explained under note 4.7 above. Further, the
revaluation surphus on property, plant and equipment is o presented in the statement of fisancial position and statement
of changes i equity as a capital reserve | 2. part of equity and the Companies Act, 20117 removed the spacific provisions
aliowing the above treatment and hence, a deficit arsing on revaluation of a particular property is now to be accounted for m
accordance with applicabée firancial reparting Standards. Accordingly, any surplusideficit) arising on revaluation of fixed
assets is accounted for at individual asset bevel wherein any deficit on revahuation is charged to profit or boss account after
netting off any surples afready recorded on that assed,

In these financial statements the above explained change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospactively, with
the restatement of the comparative information and the Company has presented its statemant of financial position as at the
beginning of the sarliest comparative period i.e., January 01, 2017, and retated notes in accordance with requirement of IAS
1- Presentation of Financial Statements (Revisad) (IAS 1). Had the accounting policy not been changed, the surplus on
revakiation of freehold land would have been shown as a separaie line iem (below equily in the statement of financial
position) amounting to Rs. 384,003,155 and Rs. 209,883,736 for the year ended 31 Dec 2017 and 31 December 2016

respectively,
as at 01 January 2017 as at 31 December 2017
| e | | M|t | 2 |

Efacl on stalamant of fnancial posfion:

Surpis on revaluation of PPE (below equity) 200,883,736 (209,883.736) - 384,003,155 (384.003.155) -

Share capital and ressrves s 209883736 200883736 - 384003155 384,003,155

Effect on staemant of changes i equity

Capital reserves

Efiect on stalemer of oiher comprehensive ' 2018

incom: A prevousty | s restated
— | mported || AISETENS || e

Retained Eamngs - 14885908 14896999
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Mote Rupeas Rupees

7. 158UED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

5,905,000 (2017: 5,905,000) ordinary shares

of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash 59,050,000 59,050,000
45,000 (2017: 95,000) ordinary shares of As. 10
each issued for consideration other than cash 71 50,000 850,000
22,607,393 (2017; 19,542 316) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each issued as bonus shares 276,073,930 195,423,160
72 286,073,930 255,423,160

71 This represents the issuance of shares against the transfer of plant and machinery and other assets.

7.2 Reconcilation of [ssued. subscribed and paid-up share capital

20138 207 2018 an7
HRumier Mumiber Aupess Rupess

Issued, subscribed and paid-up of Rs. 10

each as at 01 January 25 542 318 22805640 255423160 228,056,400
lssumosotbonus shares offe. 106ach  J065.077 2706676 30850770 27.366.760
lssued, subseribed and paid-up of Rs. 10

éach x5 at 31 December 28607303 25542316 286073930 255,423,160

Highnoon Laborataries Limited &7
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R Mo . Pupes o Rgess =y e Y P A
B.  SURPLUS ONREVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS i | [roameie] [ P
Gross surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as at 01 January 440,703 587 233,230 701 lease payments | | future periods | outstanding
Additions during the year : 215,900,458 | T ]
Incremental depreciation relating to surplus onrealuation b Ruptis
of fixed assets - transferred fo unappropeiated profit Not Later than one year 29,568 460 4,805 204 24,763 256
Met of deferred tax {14,886 999} | (6,101,057} Later than ong year but not later than five years 48.904 573 4,418,479 44 486 094
Related deferred tax liability {5,670,043) (2.335,605) _ 78,473,033 9,223,683 69,249 350
oS0  (BA3662) po.
420,146,545 440,703,587 e
Less related deferred tax Hability on:
Bakance at the beginning of the year 56700432 | 23,396,085 Notiwe e o e Wi LA s
Addition duringthe year ; 36,757,431 o T T T e R
Effect of change in proportion of narmal sales AD7, 769 (77.449) s 2,960,068 31,603,616
Effect of change in tax rate {1.701,013) -
Incremental depreciation relating to surplus on revaluation Sabsent features of i beases ke ns lobows: 2018 2mT )
of fixed assets - transferred o unappropriated profit (5,670,043} (2,335 605) Discounting factor 7.00%-11.3% 7.00%-8.50%
W e s ——— 3648 menths  36- 48 ot
Surphus on revaliation of fxed asssts a5 30 31 December B 370,409 400 384,003,155 SecUnly deposits 5%-10% 5%-10%

The Company has entered into finance lease arrangements with various financial institutions for lkeased vehicles as shown in
Note 16.1. The kabiities under thess arrangements are payable in monthly installments and above mentioned mark-up rates
are used as discounting factor fo determing the present value of minkmum lease payments.

All Tease agreements carry renewal option at the end of lease period and the Gompany intends to exercise its opton 10
purchase the leased assats upon completion of the respective lease terms. Residual value of the lsased assets has already

81  This represent surplus arising on reviluation of freehold land, building on freehodd land, plant and machinery both
owned and leased. This has been adjusted by incremental depreciation arssing due to revaluation, net of deterred
tax. The Eatest revaluation of fand, building on freehold land and plant and machinery was carried out on 31
December 20117 by M/S Surval which resulted in a surplus of Rs. 215 million. In the current year 2018 there is no

ingrisase in the surplus amount. been paid at the inception of the leas in the form of security deposit. There are no financial restrictions imposed by lessor.
Taxes, repairs, raplacements and insurance costs arg boma by the lessee.
2018 2007 2018 2007
0. LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANGE LEASE Nate Rupees Rupees 10. LONGTEAMADVANCES - Note Rupees Rupees
Present value of minimum #ase payments B9 249 350 31,603,616 Balance at 31 December 56,303,880 45 520,056
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilites 4 24,763,256 17,161,328 Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 14 12,193,574 10,404 344
A4 4860094 14,442,288 #4,110,308 35516612
These represent advances taken from employees against future sale of vehicles as per the Company's policy.
&8 Highnoon Laboratories Limited Highnoon Laborataries Limited &5
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11. DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Deferred tax - net 1.1 17,286,233 31,021,399
Grakuity 113 356, 835157 342 408, 530
_ EICETE - T
111 Deferred tax - net
Dederrad tax fiabifities on taxable temporary differences:
Surplus on revaluation of assets 8 49 737,145 56,700,432
Accelerated tax depreciation 43,722 774 49,778,320
Finance lease 4,486,861 3,735,750
97 846,780 110.214.502
Deferrad lax assets on deductible temporary differences: : J
Provision for doubtful dabts (707.891) (720.141)
Provision for gratuity (77 644, 735) (75,629,303)
Provision for stock {2.310.521) (2,843.659)
(BO.GSTS4T)  (79.193,103)
_ Netdeterred taxabity 17280233 31021399
112 Mowement indefemed tax bafances is asTolows:
At beginning of the year 31,021,339 12,010,129
Recognized as deferred fax expensa / (income) in profit or I05s account: - o
- Surplus on revaiuation of fixed assets {5,670,043) | {2,335 605)
- heoeterated tax depreciation on fixed assets {6,055 546) (4,126.719)
- Leased Assels 75111 (120,415
= Prowision for Stock 532 730 1.488 053
- Provision fior doubtiul detits 18,250 (430.053)
- Grakuity 3503435 | | (6957.641)
(6920054)  (12,472,376)
Recognized in surplus on revaluation of fixed assets:
-Effect of revaluation during the year - 35,757 43
-Effect of change in kax rate {1,701.013) £
-Effect of change in proportion of Normal sales 407.769 | (77.449)
(1293244)  35679.987

Recognized as defesred tax expense in other comprehensive income:
- Gratuity

17,289,233

Highnoon Labarataries Limited

s, SN, i

1,021,399

Notes to the Financial Statements

For Thi Year Ended 31 December 2018

11.3.1 General descripbion:

113 Gratuity

2018

.

annual repost 2018

2017
s S8

As discussed in note 4.4, the Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its employees, under which
benefits are paid on cessation of employment subject to a minimum qualifying period of service. Oualified actuaries
have carried out the valuation as at 31 Decernber 2018 using the projected unét credit method.

11.3.2 Btatement of mancial posHosm

Present value of defined benefit obligation 11.33 356,835,157 342,208,530
11.3.3 Netrecognized liability:

Liability as at 01 January 342 308 530 283,352 116

Amount recognized during the year 11,34 49 030,111 44,210,142

Remeasurement adjustments recognized during the year 22,782,070 15477.217

Benafit paid during the year {37, 185.554) (10,830,545}

Lisbdlity as al 31 December 356 835,157 342,208,530
11.3 4 Expense recognized i statement of profit ar loss:

Current service cost 23,166,036 2,175.211

Interest cost 25,864,075 23,034,931

Amount chargeabde to profit or loss 48.030,111 44,210,142
11.3.5 Remeasuremiend recognized inother comprehensne Moome:

Remeasurement losses in OC 22,782,070 15477.17
11.3.6 Movement n the present value of defing benefit obligation:

Liability as at 01 January 342 08,530 28335216

Currem service cost 23,166,036 2117521

Inderest cost 25.864.075 23,034,931

Remeasurement adjustments recognized during the year 22,782,070 15477.217

Benefit paid during the year {57,185.554) (10,830,845}

Liability as at 31 December 356,835,157 342 208,530

Highnoon Laborataries Limited A
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11.3.7 Historical infarmation 12, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
for gratuity plan [ 2m8 1 . o7 | | 2008 Cams | e | Trade creditoes 109, 7&5.948 128,373,331
e | fw L e 1 2 Lo R ke e
Present value of defined ACCrued expenses 142,619,431 214,793 891
Benedit obligation 356835157 342208530 293352116 256124870 216,774,395 Avances IFm cusiomers 12.1 30,551 545 16,456,522
Remeasurement adjustment —— — ——— ——— Payabie to Provident Fund Trust 122 6,201,047 5,020,453
arising on plan kabilities 22TEZOTD  154TTNT 14018889 27758200 2412983 Worker's Profit Participation Fund 123 1,678,410 1,842 893
Remeasurement adjustment as N . Payable to Central Research Fund 10,180,345 9922724
percentage of outstanding lability 6.38% 4 52% 4.78% 10.84% 1.11% Withhobding tax payable 7660 800 B.459,004
Lmh:“m unit credit method with the following sigaificant assumgtions was used for the valuation of this Payable to Employees Welfare Trust 526,880 128,012
i 17 o S5
= Discount rate 13.25% pa B25% pa
) Expecied raie of increase in salary 12.25% pa. 7.95% pa. 121 mWImmmm.Enﬂlh[ﬂﬂi?;ﬂ&ﬂ}ﬂuhﬁmh!ﬂﬂhﬁiﬁhﬂ}%lm
Expected average remaining working life time 8 years g years
5 Maortality rates SLIC SLIC

2001-2005  2001-2005

Balance at the beginning of the year 5,029,453 4,130,226

11 3.8 Estimated expense of current service cost and interest cost on defined benefit obligation to be charged to Profit or Addition 59 334 403
Lossin 2019 amaunting to Rs. 25.7 miflion and Rs. 45.1 million respectively. Suring Sy - ik

i 1072,

11.3:9 Sensitrvity analysis Paid during the year (31072808)  (24,937.746)
Significant assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary . oo e
Increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
respaciive assumptions occurring o the énd of the reporting period. while hofding ail other assumplions constant. 125 W Profil Particigiation Find

2018 m7 Balance at the beginning of the 1.842 893 2,706,681
Rupees Rupees . o R
VAL EXDWSIIN 01 s e o o ST kA
Discount rate + 100 bps 328 868 308 316,156,054 58 553 958 50,718,008
il oo i S Add: Intérest on funds utilized by the Company 35 259,668 125,138
Salaryincrease + 100 bps 388703239  372.586.375 58 843 647 50,843,236
s 2126871 315442142
CReR . Loss:Paduring heyeartotheFune s 4o
1.678. 410 1.842.893
12.3.1 Mark-up @ 75% (2017 63.75%) per annum is provided on unpaid balance of the Fund in accordance with the rules
Ot Fand.
72 Highnoon Labaratories Limited Highnoon Laboratories Lamited 73

122  Provident fund
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13.  SHORT TERM BORROWINGS * *
Fodlowing are the cradii facilities available to the Company but are nof avalled a1 vear end:

14,

15.

131

132

13.3

The Company has short term running finance facilities available from various commercial banks under mark up
arrangements having apgregate sanctioned limit of Rs. 505 million (2017 Rs. 505 million). Out of these facilsties, Rs.
305 million &5 available as sublimit and can interchangeably be utilized for L/C sightUsance. These faciities canry
mark-up at ratés ranging from oné month KIBOR to three months KIBOR plus 50 to 100 basis points (2017: one
month KIBOR to s months KIBOR plus 10010 150 basis points) per annum. These facilities along with import credit
facslity are secured by way of first pari passu charge for Rs. 639 .46 million (2017: Rs. 639.46 million) on fixed assets
and first joint pari passu hypothecation charge of Rs. 474 million (2017: Re. 482 5 million) on stocks including but
not lmited 10 raw materials, goods in process and finished goods of the Company. The company has also avaiable 2
lease finance facility amounting to Re. 150 Million.

Qut of total borrowing facility, an amount of Rs. 50 million (2017: Rs. 50 milleon) represents Export Refinance
Facility obtained from a cammercial bank under SBP requlations at  subsidized mark up rate of 4% (2017 4%) per
Anngm,

The Company also has aggregate sanctioned import credit facilities available from various commercial banks
amounting to Rs. 1,200 millon (2017: Rs. 1000 million). Out of these facilities, Rs. 220 million is available as
sublimit and can inferchangeably be wilized as Running Finance.

2018 2017
Note Aupees Rupees
CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 9 24,763,256 17,161,328
Long term advances 10 12,193,574 10,404 344
o oSS el e i

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

151

T4

Contingenciss

While finalizing income tax assessments for the tax year 2010, Additional Commissionar Inland Revenug
[ACIR) had made certain additions with aggregate tax impact of Rs. 12 million. The Company had filed an appeal
before Commissianer Inland Revenue CiR (Appeals) who had upheaid the additions made by assessing officer
Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appaal before Appeliate Tribunal Intand Revenus (ATIR), who deleted the
aforesaid additions. However, the Tax Departmaént has filed reference before honorabde Lahore High Court
apainst the judgment of ATIR. The case is pending adjudication. Provision has not been recognized by the
Gompany, as the management expects a tavorable outcome.

= While findlizing income tax assessmeents for the tax wear 2011, ACIR made additions amounting to Rs, 42.2
million with aggregate tax impact of Rs. 24 million. The Company filsd an appeal before CIR (Appeals) who
deleted additions aggregating to Rs. 39,7 million. For the remaining amoint Rs. 2.5 million the Company has
filed an appeal before the ATIR which is pending adjudication. Provision has not been recognized by the
Company, as the management expects a favorable outcome.

annual repost 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements
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15.2

- The ACIR had issued an amended assessment order w's 122(1\122(5)M77 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

and made certain addition amounting to Rs. 24.1 million for the Tax year 2013, The company preferred an
appeal to CIR against the aforesaid order, The CIR vide his appeBate order, upheld the addition amounting to Rs.
24.1 million. Bsing aggrieved the company has filed 2n appéal against the aforementionad addition befora the
ITAT, which is still pending.

- The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue has passed orders under séction 161205 in respect of Tax Years
2013, 2015 and 2016 and created a demand of Ris. 3.7 million based on the observation that the Company has
not deducted Withholding Tax while making payment 10 certain supphiers. Being aggrieved with the order the

Company has filed appeal in CIR (Appeals). Provision has not been recognized by the Company, as the
management expects afavorable outcome.

= The DGR issued an order under section 458 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 by creating demand of As. 4.3 million,
The Company has prefierred appeal against the said order which has been partially decided in the favor of the
Company and demand has been reduced by Rs. 3.73 million. The Company has preferred appeal against the
remaining addition before ATIR, which is pending adjudication. Provision has not been recognized by the
Company. a5 the management expects a favorable outcome.

- The DCIR msued an onder under section 161/205 in respect of income tax year 2014 and created a demand of
R=. 1.5 million based on the obsenvation that the Company has nol deducted Withholding Tax while making
paymems to cartain suppliers againsl purchases and other services. Baing aggrieved with the order the
Company has filed an appeal before the CIR (Appeals) which is pending adjudication. Provision has not been
recognired by the Company, 35 the management expects a favorable ouicome.

Cosnmiimenis 2018 2017
Commitments againstinrevocableletters oicreditinclude: O™ Wi oo
Riaw materials 324,563,123 241,304 AT2
Packing materials 23 515,118 32,055,375
Fineshed Goads 15,861 81 26,313,228
Phartt &nd machingry 126,128.340 23,536 496
' 492 068.502 323,209,571
Remtals under igarah agraements:
Not Later than one year 0,987,189 19,314 806
Later than one year but not later than five years 17,225,638 3,927 008
LIOENAN1 S PRI DN 0L LI TRIRTVE YOa - e e

- Bank guarantess issued on bebalf of the Company aggregate to Rs. 1.60 mélion (201 7: Rs 1.60 million).

- Facilitees of letters of armouing to Rs. 20 milllon (2017: Rs. 10 mallkon) are avatiabe to the Company
undar charge of siocks and on present and future current assets and property, plant and equipment of the

Cornpany.

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 16.1 845,085,035
Capitad work in progress 16.2 30,982,977
976,068,012
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